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Investing in our Common Stock involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider all of the risk factors
and uncertainties described below, in addition to the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10- K,
including the section of this report titled “ Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations ” and our consolidated financial statements and related notes, before investing in our Common Stock. The
risks described below may not be the only ones relating to our Company and additional risks that we currently believe
are immaterial may also affect us. If any of these risks, including those described below, materialize, our business,
competitive position, reputation, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and future prospects could be
seriously harmed. In these circumstances, the market price of our Common Stock could decline, and investors may lose
all or a part of their investment. Risks Related to Our Financial Results and Capital Needs We have incurred substantial
losses since our inception and anticipate that we will continue to incur substantial and increasing losses for the
foreseeable future. We are a pre- clinical- stage biotechnology company. Investment in biotechnology related to
genetically modified cells is highly speculative because it entails substantial upfront capital expenditures and significant
risk that a product candidate will fail to prove effective, gain regulatory approval or become commercially viable. We do
not have any products approved by regulatory authorities and have not generated any revenues from product sales or
otherwise to date, and have incurred significant research, development and other expenses related to our ongoing
operations and expect to continue to incur such expenses. As a result, we have not been profitable and have incurred
significant operating losses in every reporting period since our inception. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, we reported a net loss of $ 39. 7 million and $ 113. 4 million. We had an accumulated deficit of $ 244. 0
million and $ 204. 3 million as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. We do not expect to generate revenues for the
foreseeable future. We expect to continue to incur significant expenses and operating losses for the foreseeable future.
We anticipate these losses to increase as we continue to research, develop, and seek regulatory approvals for our product
candidates and any additional product candidates we may acquire, in- license or develop, and potentially begin to
commercialize product candidates that may achieve regulatory approval. We may encounter unforeseen expenses,
difficulties, complications, delays, and other unknown factors that may adversely affect our business. The size of our
future net losses will depend, in part, on the rate of future growth of our expenses and our ability to generate revenues.
If any of our product candidates fails in clinical studies or does not gain regulatory approval, or if approved, fails to
achieve market acceptance, we may never become profitable. Even if we achieve profitability in the future, we may not
be able to sustain profitability in subsequent periods. We anticipate that our expenses will increase in the future as we
continue to invest in research and development of our existing product candidates, investigate and potentially acquire
new product candidates and expand our manufacturing and commercialization activities. There is substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a going concern, which may hinder our ability to obtain future financing. Our
consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2023 have been prepared under the assumption that we will continue as
a going concern for the next twelve months. As of June 30, 2023, we had cash and cash equivalents of $ 1. 9 million and
an accumulated deficit of $ 244. 0 million. We do not believe that our cash and cash equivalents are sufficient for the next
twelve months. As a result of our financial condition and other factors described herein, there is substantial doubt about
our ability to continue as a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern will depend on our ability to obtain
additional funding, as to which no assurances can be given. We continue to analyze various alternatives, including
potentially obtaining debt or equity financings or other arrangements. Our future success depends on our ability to raise
capital. We cannot be certain that raising additional capital, whether through selling additional debt or equity securities
or obtaining a line of credit or other loan, will be available to us or, if available, will be on terms acceptable to us. If we
issue additional securities to raise funds, these securities may have rights, preferences, or privileges senior to those of our
Common Stock, and our current shareholders may experience dilution. If we are unable to obtain funds when needed or
on acceptable terms, we may be required to curtail our current development programs, cut operating costs, forgo future
development and other opportunities, or even terminate our operations. We will require substantial additional financing
to achieve our goals, and a failure to obtain this necessary capital when needed could force us to delay, limit, reduce or
terminate our product development or commercialization efforts. We expect to expend substantial resources for the
foreseeable future to continue the pre- clinical development of our cell, gene and immunotherapy product candidates,
and the advancement and potential expansion of our pre- clinical research pipeline. We also expect to continue to expend
resources for the development and manufacturing of product candidates and the technology we have licensed or have a
right to license from our licensors. These expenditures will include costs associated with research and development,
potentially acquiring or licensing new product candidates or technologies, conducting pre- clinical and clinical studies
and potentially obtaining regulatory approvals and manufacturing products, as well as marketing and selling products
approved for sale, if any. Under the terms of certain of our license agreements, we are obligated to make payments upon
the achievement of certain development, regulatory and commercial milestones. We will also need to make significant
expenditures to develop a commercial organization capable of sales, marketing, and distribution for any products, if any,
that we intend to sell ourselves in the markets in which we choose to commercialize on our own. In addition, other
unanticipated costs may arise. Because the design and outcome of our ongoing, planned and anticipated pre- clinical and



clinical studies is highly uncertain, we cannot reasonably estimate the actual amounts necessary to successfully complete
the development and commercialization of our product candidates. Our future capital requirements depend on many
factors, including: e the costs and payments associated with license agreements for our potential products and
technologies; o the costs of conducting pre- clinical and clinical studies and the costs of manufacturing our product
candidates e the timing of, and the costs involved in, obtaining regulatory approvals for our product candidates, if
clinical studies are successful, including any costs from post- market requirements; e the cost of commercialization
activities for our product candidates, if any of these product candidates is approved for sale, including marketing, sales
and distribution costs; e our ability to establish and maintain strategic licensing or other arrangements and the financial
terms of such agreements; e the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining, expanding, defending and
enforcing patent claims, including litigation costs and the outcome of such litigation; and e the timing, receipt and
amount of sales of, or royalties on, our future products, if any. Additional funds may not be available when we need them
on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. If adequate funds are not available to us on a timely basis, we may be
required to delay, limit, reduce or terminate preclinical studies, clinical studies, or other development activities for one or
more of our product candidates or delay, limit, reduce or terminate our establishment of sales, marketing and
distribution capabilities or other activities that may be necessary to commercialize our product candidates. Raising
additional capital may cause dilution to our existing stockholders, restrict our operations or require us to relinquish
rights to our technologies. Until such time as we can generate substantial product revenues, we may attempt to finance
our cash needs through equity offerings, debt financings, government and / or other third- party grants or other third-
party funding, marketing and distribution arrangements and other collaborations, strategic alliances, and licensing
arrangements. To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, our
investors’ ownership interest will be diluted. Debt financing, if available, may involve agreements that include covenants
limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures
or declaring dividends. If we are unable to obtain funding on a timely basis, we may be required to significantly curtail
one or more clinical research or development programs, which would adversely impact our potential revenues, future
results of operations and financial condition. We are a pre- clinical biotechnology company and may never be able to
successfully develop marketable products or generate any revenue. We have a very limited relevant operating history
upon which an evaluation of our performance and prospects can be made. There is no assurance that our future
operations will result in profits. If we cannot generate sufficient revenues, we may suspend or cease operations. We are
an early- stage biotechnology company and have not generated any revenues to date. All of our product candidates are in
the discovery stage or pre- clinical development stage. Moreover, we cannot be certain that our research and
development efforts will be successful or, if successful, that our potential treatments will ever be approved for sale to
generate commercial revenues. Our pipeline includes cell, gene and immunotherapy involving genetically modified cells
targeted to treat cancer, HIV, and Hepatitis B, and we rely on third parties under contract in the development of
product candidates in our pipeline. There is no guarantee that we will be able to manage and fund the development of a
pipeline with multiple target conditions, nor that third parties will meet their obligations to us in connection with our
research and development. We and certain third parties, on which we rely, have no relevant operating history upon
which an evaluation of our performance and prospects can be made. We are subject to all of the business risks associated
with a new enterprise, including, but not limited to, risks of unforeseen capital requirements, failure of treatments either
in non- clinical testing or in clinical trials, failure to establish business relationships, failure of our third parties to meet
their obligations to us and competitive disadvantages against larger and more established companies. If we fail to
become profitable, we may suspend or cease operations. From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings,
regulatory investigations or disputes, and governmental inquiries that could cause us to incur significant expenses, divert
our management’ s attention, and materially harm our business, financial condition, and operating results. From time to
time, we may be subject to claims, lawsuits, government investigations, and other proceedings involving intellectual
property, privacy, securities, tax, labor and employment, and other matters that could adversely affect our business
operations and financial condition. Recently, we have seen a rise in the number and significance of these disputes and
inquiries. The arrest and indictment of Serhat Giimriikcii, a co- founder of the Company, has, and could in the future,
subject us to regulatory proceedings and litigation by governance agencies and private litigants brought against us, that
regardless of their merits, could harm our reputation, divert management’ s attention from our operations and result in
substantial legal fees and other costs. Additionally, we have in the past been subject to intense media scrutiny, which
exposes us to increasing regulation, government investigations, legal actions, and penalties. We have also been named in
several lawsuits related to Mr. Giimriikcii. For example, the Company and certain of its current and former officers
have been named in securities class actions by purported stockholders of ours, alleging defendants violated Sections 10
(b) and 20 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Rule 10b- S thereunder, by making false and
misleading statements and omissions of material fact in connection with the Company’ s relationship with Mr.
Giimriikcii and its commercial prospects. In addition, two stockholders filed stockholder derivative action lawsuits
purportedly on behalf of the Company against certain of our executive officers and the members of our Board of
Directors alleging violations of Sections 14 (a) and 20 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and also setting out
claims for breach of fiduciary duty, contribution and indemnification, aiding and abetting, and gross mismanagement.
Additionally, from time to time, we may be, and currently are, subject to inquiries from regulators in which they seek
information about us. Such further inquiries could result in more formal investigations or allegations, which could
adversely impact our business, financial condition, and operating results. Litigation, regulatory proceedings, such as the
investigations described above, as well as the related class action claims and lawsuits, and securities matters that we are



currently facing or could face, can be protracted and expensive, and have results that are difficult to predict. Certain of
these matters include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages and include claims for
injunctive relief. Additionally, our legal costs for any of these matters, either alone or in the aggregate, could be
significant. Adverse outcomes with respect to any of these legal or regulatory proceedings may result in significant
settlement costs or judgments, penalties, and fines. Even if these proceedings are resolved in our favor, the time and
resources necessary to resolve them could divert the resources of our management and require significant expenditures.
See Note 9- Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10- K and the section titled “ Legal Proceedings ” in Part I, Item 3 of this Annual Report on
Form 10- K. The results of litigation, investigations, claims, and regulatory proceedings cannot be predicted with
certainty, and determining reserves for pending litigation and other legal and regulatory matters requires significant
judgment. There can be no assurance that our expectations will prove correct, and even if these matters are resolved in
our favor or without significant cash settlements, these matters, and the time and resources necessary to litigate or
resolve them, could harm our business, financial condition, and operating results. Negative publicity has had and may
continue to have a negative impact on our business and may have a long- term effect on our relationships with our
customers, partners and collaborators. Our business and reputation have been negatively affected by negative publicity
resulting from the arrest and indictment of Serhat Giimriikcii, a co- founder of the Company and an inventor of some of
the Company’ s intellectual property. If we are unable to rebuild the trust of our collaborators, research institutions and
investors, and if further negative publicity continues, we could experience a substantial negative impact on our business.
We have experienced claims and litigation as a consequence of these matters, including stockholder class actions in
connection with a decline in our stock price and litigation with Mr. Giimriikcii. Related legal expenses of defending these
claims have negatively impacted our operating results. Continuing higher legal fees, potential new claims, liabilities from
existing cases and continuing negative publicity could continue to have a negative impact on our operating results. Risks
Related to Transaction with Gedi Cube The Transaction with Gedi Cube may not be completed and failure to complete
the transaction could negatively impact the price of our Common Stock and have other adverse effects. On September
28, 2023, the Company signed a Purchase Agreement to acquire Gedi Cube, a cutting- edge health AI company, in which
the Company will acquire all the issued and outstanding stock of Gedi Cube. Completion of the transaction is subject to,
among other matters, satisfaction of the closing conditions provided for in the Purchase Agreement and approval of the
transaction by the Company’ s stockholders. There can be no assurance that the Transaction will be consummated on
the terms or timeframe currently contemplated, or at all. If the Transaction is not completed for any reason, the ongoing
business of Renovaro may be materially adversely affected and, without realizing any of the benefits of having completed
the Transaction, we would be subject to a number of risks, including the following: ® we may experience negative
reactions from the financial markets, including negative impacts on the price of our Common Stock; e we may
experience negative reactions from our customers, suppliers, vendors, landlords, commercial collaborators and other
business relationships; ® we will still be required to pay certain significant costs relating to the transaction, such as legal,
accounting, investor relations and printing fees; e the Purchase Agreement places certain restrictions on the conduct of
the business pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, which may delay or prevent us from undertaking business
opportunities that, absent the Purchase Agreement, may have been pursued; e matters relating to the transaction
(including integration planning) require substantial commitments of time and resources by our management, which may
have resulted in the distraction of our management from ongoing business operations and pursuing other opportunities
that could have been beneficial to us. Risks Related to the Development of Our Product Candidates We are highly dependent
on the services of third parties to conduct research and development of our pipeline, and our failure to maintain the services of
such third parties could harm our business. We are highly dependent on third parties working in conjunction with our officers,
employees, scientific advisory board and research institutions in the research and development of product candidates in our
pipeline. The loss of the services of any of the foregoing, or of any of our key employees or scientific advisory board members
could impede the achievement of our research, development, regulatory apprevals— approval , and commercialization
objectives. The results of pre- clinical studies or earlier clinical studies are not necessarily predictive of future results, and if we
fail to demonstrate efficacy in our pre- clinical studies and / or clinical trials in the future our future business prospects, financial
condition and operating results will be materially adversely affected. The success of our research and development efforts will
depend upon our ability to demonstrate the efficacy of the treatments in our pipeline in pre- clinical studies, as well as in clinical
trials following IND approval by the FDA. Pre- clinical studies involve testing potential product candidates in appropriate non-
human disease models to demonstrate efficacy and safety. Success in pre- clinical studies does not ensure that later clinical
studies will generate adequate data to demonstrate the efficacy and safety of an investigational drug. Currently, several of our
product candidates, including RENB- DC- 11, our genetically- modified allogeneic dendritic therapeutic vaccination platform
for solid tumors, ENGB- RENB - HV- 12, our therapeutic HIV vaccine, and ENGB-- RENB - HV- 01, our autologous HIV
curative treatment are all currently in various stages of pre- clinical development with ongoing and planned pre- clinical studies
in conjunction with research institutions and third parties. Despite preliminary data we believe is positive, this does not
guarantee that any of these products will proceed to the clinical stage or to approval for commercial use. A number of companies
in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries, including those with greater resources and experience than us, have suffered
significant setbacks in clinical studies, even after seeing promising results in earlier preclinical stadtes-or clinical studies.
Regulatory agencies evaluate these-non- clinical data carefully before they will approve clinical testing in humans. If certain
non- clinical data reveals potential safety issues or the results are inconsistent with an expectation of the potential product
candidates’ efficacy in humans, the regulatory agencies may require additional more rigorous testing before allowing human
clinical trials. This additional testing will increase program expenses and extend timelines. We may decide to suspend further



testing on our potential products or abandon the product lines altogether if, in the judgment of our management and advisors, the
pre- clinical test results do not support further development, as we did with our pan- coronavirus and influenza product lines.
Our novel gene, cell and immunotherapy product candidates and new therapeutic approaches could result in heightened
regulatory scrutiny, delays in clinical development or delays in our inability to achieve regulatory approval or commercialization
of our product candidates. Our future success is dependent on the successful development of novel gene, cell and
immunotherapy product candidates. Because these programs, particularly our pipeline of allogeneic T- cell product candidates
that are bioengineered from healthy donor cells, represent a new approach to immunotherapy for the treatment of cancer and
other diseases, developing and commercializing our product candidates subject us to a number of challenges. Moreover, actual or
perceived safety issues, including adoption of new therapeutics or novel approaches to treatment, may adversely influence the
willingness of subjects to participate in clinical studies, or if approved by applicable regulatory authorities, of physicians to
subscribe to the novel treatment mechanics. The FDA or other applicable regulatory authorities may ask for specific post-
market requirements, and additional information informing benefits or risks of our products may emerge at any time prior to or
after regulatory approval. We face significant competition in an environment of rapid technological change and the possibility
that our competitors may achieve regulatory approval before us or develop therapies that are more advanced or effective than
ours, which may adversely affect our financial condition and our ability to successfully market or commercialize our product
candidates. The development of treatments in the fields of cancer, HIV, and Hepatitis B is highly competitive and many
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, academic institutions, governmental agencies, and other public and private
research organizations may pursue the research and development of technologies, drugs or other therapeutic products for the
treatment of some or all of the diseases we are targeting. Nearly all of our competitors have greater capital resources, larger
overall research and development staffs and facilities, and a longer history in drug discovery and development, obtaining
regulatory approval and pharmaceutical product manufacturing and marketing than we do. Techniques in gene, cell and
immunotherapy are subject to rapid technological change and development and are significantly affected by existing rival
products and medical procedures, new product introductions and the market activities of other participants. With additional
resources, our competitors may be able to respond to the-rapid and significant technological changes faster than we can. Our
future success will depend in large part on our ability to maintain a competitive position with respect to these technologies. We
may also face competition from products, which have already been approved and accepted by the medical community for the
treatment of these same indications. If we are unable to compete effectively with any existing products, new treatment methods
and new technologies, we may be unable to commercialize therapeutic products that we may develop in the future, which could
adversely impact our potential revenues, results of operations and financial condition or lead to abandonment of product
candidates in our pipeline. Our reliance on third parties, such as university laboratories, contract manufacturing organizations
and contract or clinical research organizations, may result in delays in completing, or a failure to complete, non- clinical testing
or clinical trials if they fail to perform under our agreements with them. In the course of the development of our pipeline, we
have and expect to continue to engage university laboratories, non- profit organizations, independent contractors, other
biotechnology companies ereentraet-or clinical manufacturing organizations to conduct and manage research and development,
pre- clinical and clinical studies and to manufacture materials for us to be used in pre- clinical and clinical testing. Due to
engagements with these organizations, many important aspects of our research have been and will be out of our direct control. If
any of these organizations we may engage in the future, fail to perform their obligations under our agreements with them or fail
to perform non- clinical testing and / or clinical trials in a satisfactory manner, we may face delays in completing our clinical
trials, as well as commercialization of any of our product candidates. Furthermore, any loss or delay in obtaining contracts with
such entities may also delay the completion of our clinical trials, regulatory filings and the potential market approval of our
product candidates. Changes in healthcare law and implementing regulations, including government restrictions on pricing and
reimbursement, as well as healthcare policy, may negatively impact our ability to generate revenues. In the United States and
some foreign jurisdictions, there have been a number of proposed legislative and regulatory changes related to the healthcare
system that could affect our ability to profitably sell or commercialize our product candidates for which we obtain marketing
approval in the future. The potential pricing and reimbursement environment for our product candidates may change in the
future and become more challenging due to, among other reasons, policies advanced by the current or any new presidential
administration, federal agencies, healthcare legislation passed by Congress, or fiscal challenges faced by all levels of
government health administration authorities, or by similar changes in foreign countries. The implementation of any such
changes could have a material adverse effect on our competitive position, business, financial condition, results of operations,
and prospects, including our share price and ability to raise capital. We have limited experience in drug development and may
not be able to successfully develop any drugs, which would cause us to cease operations. We have never successfully developed
a new drug and brought it to market. Our management and clinical teams have experience in drug development, but they may
not be able to successfully develop any drugs. Our ability to achieve revenues and profitability in our business will depend on,
among other things, our ability to develop products internally or to obtain rights to them from others on favorable terms;
complete laboratory testing and human studies; obtain and maintain necessary intellectual property rights to our products;
successfully complete regulatory review to obtain requisite governmental agency approvals; enter into arrangements with third
parties to manufacture our products on our behalf; and enter into arrangements with third parties to provide sales and marketing
functions. If we are unable to achieve these objectives, we will be forced to cease operations. Disruptions at the FDA and other
government agencies caused by funding shortages or global health concerns could hinder their ability to hire, retain or deploy
key leadership and other personnel, or otherwise prevent new or modified products from being developed, approved or
commercialized in a timely manner or at all, which could negatively impact our business. The ability of the FDA to review and
approve new products can be affected by a variety of factors, including government budget and funding levels, ability to hire
and retain key personnel and accept the payment of user fees, and statutory, regulatory, and policy changes. Average review



times at the agency have fluctuated in recent years as a result. In addition, government funding of other government agencies
that fund research and development actrvrtres is subject to the polrtlcal process, whrch is inherently ﬂurd and unpredictable.

ﬁ&&teﬂa-l—advefse—effeet—eﬁ-etﬁbustﬁess—Our gene therapy product cand1dates are strll in development and erl require extensive
clinical testing before we are prepared to submit an application for marketing approval to regulatory authorities. We cannot
predict with any certainty if or when we might submit any such application for regulatory approval for our product candidates or
whether any such application will be approved by the applicable regulatory authority in our target markets. Human clinical trials
are expensive and difficult to design and implement, in part because they are subject to rigorous regulatory requirements. For
instance, regulatory authorities may not agree with our proposed endpoints for any clinical trials of our gene therapy product
candidates, which may delay the commencement of our clinical trials. Clinical trials are expensive, time- consuming, difficult to
design and implement, and involve an uncertain outcome. Our product candidates are still in development and will require
extensive clinical testing before we are prepared to submit an application for marketing approval to regulatory authorities. We
cannot predict with any certainty if or when we might submit any such application for regulatory approval fer-of our product
candidates or whether any such application will be approved by the applicable regulatory authority in our target markets. Human
clinical trials are expensive and difficult to design and implement, in part because they are subject to rigorous regulatory
requirements. For instance, regulatory authorities may not agree with our proposed endpoints for any clinical trials of our
product candidates, which may delay the commencement of our clinical trials. The clinical trial process is also time- consuming.
We estimate that clinical trials of our product candidates will take at least several years to complete. A number of companies in
the biopharmaceutical industry have suffered significant setbacks in advanced clinical trials due to lack of efficacy or adverse
safety profiles, notwithstanding promising results in earlier trials, and in the regulatory approval process. In addition, the design
of a clinical trial, such as endpoints, inclusion and exclusion criteria, statistical analysis plans, data access protocols and trial
sizing, can determine whether its results will support approval of a product and flaws in the design of a clinical trial may not
become apparent until the clinical trial is well advanced. If we experience delays in the commencement or completion of our
clinical trials, or if we terminate a clinical trial prior to completion, the commercial prospects of our product candidates could be
harmed, and our ability to generate revenues may be delayed. In addition, any delays in our clinical trials could increase our
costs, cause a drop in our stock prlce slow down the approval process and Jeopardrze our ab1l1ty to commence product sales and

: : al-trials: Any of these occurrences may harm our busrness ﬁnancral
condrtron and results of operatrons Enrollment and retention of patients in clinical trials is an expensive and time- consuming
process and could be made more difficult or rendered impossible by multiple factors outside our control. We may encounter
delays in enrolling, or be unable to enroll, a sufficient number of patients to complete any of our clinical trials, and even once
enrolled we may be unable to retain a sufficient number of patients to complete any of our trials. Patient enrollment and
retention in clinical trials depends on many factors, including the size of the patient population, the nature of the trial protocol,
the effectiveness of our patient recruitment efforts, delays in enrollment due to travel or quarantine policies yer-otherfaetorsy
relatedto-COVID-19-, the existing body of safety and efficacy data with respect to the study candidate, the perceived risks and
benefits of gene therapy approaches for the treatment of certain diseases, the number and nature of competing existing
treatments for our target indications, the number and nature of ongoing trials for other product candidates in development for
our target indications, perceived risk of the delivery procedure, patients with pre- existing conditions that preclude their
participation in any trial, the proximity of patients to clinical sites and the eligibility criteria for the study. Furthermore, the
results we have reported in clinical trials to date and any other results we may report in clinical trials of any of our gene therapy
product candidates in the future may make it difficult or impossible to recruit and retain patients in other clinical trials of those
gene therapy product candidates. Similarly, negative results reported by our competitors about their product candidates may
negatively affect patient recruitment in our clinical trials. Delays or failures in planned patient enrollment or retention may result
in increased costs, program delays or both, which could have a harmful effect on our ability to develop our gene therapy product
candidates or could render further development impossible. In addition, we expect to rely on clinical trial sites to ensure proper
and timely conduct of our future clinical trials and, while we intend to enter into agreements governing their services, we will be
limited in our ability to control their actual performance. Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property We have licensed a
signifteant-portion of our intellectual property from our licensors. If we breach any of our license agreements with these
licensors, or otherwise experience disruptions to our business relationships with our licensors, we could lose intellectual
property rights that are important to our business. We hold rights under license agreements with our licensors that are important
to our business. Our research and development platform is built, in part, around patent rights licensed from such licensors. Under
our existing license agreements, we are subject to various obligations, including diligence obligations with respect to
development and commercialization activities, provision of support with respect to development of licensed intellectual
property, prosecution of intellectual property protection, payment obligations upon achievement of certain milestones and
royalties on product sales. In spite of our efforts, our licensors might conclude that we have materially breached our obligations



under such license agreements and might therefore terminate the license agreements, thereby removing or limiting our ability to
develop and commercialize products and technology covered by these license agreements. If any of these licenses are
terminated, or if the underlying patents fail to provide the intended exclusivity, competitors or other third parties would have the
freedom to seek regulatory approval of, and to market, products identical to ours and we may be required to cease our
development and commercialization of product candidates covered by any such licenses. Any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on our competitive position, business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects. Moreover,
disputes may arise regarding intellectual property subject to a licensing agreement, including: @ the scope of rights granted
under license agreements and other interpretation- related issues; ® payment obligations due to licensors under license
agreements and other disputes related to the obligations for payment related to intellectual property protection; @ the extent to
which our product candidates, technology and processes infringe on intellectual property of a licensor that is not subject to a
licensing agreement; @ the sublicensing of patent and other rights under our collaborative development relationships; e our
diligence obligations under license agreements and what activities satisfy those diligence obligations; e the inventorship and
ownership of inventions and know- how resulting from the joint creation or use of intellectual property by our licensors and us;
and e the priority of invention of patented technology. In addition, the agreements under which we currently license intellectual
property or technology from third parties are complex, and certain provisions in such agreements may be susceptible to multiple
interpretations. The resolution of any contract interpretation disagreement that may arise could narrow what we believe to be the
scope of our rights to the relevant intellectual property or technology or increase what we believe to be our financial or other
obligations under the relevant agreement, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, and prospects. Moreover, if disputes over intellectual property that we have licensed prevent or
impair our ability to maintain our licensing arrangements on commercially acceptable terms, we may be unable to successfully
develop and commercialize the affected product candidates, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, and prospects. If we do not obtain required intellectual property licenses or rights, we
could encounter delays in our product development efforts while we attempt to design around other patents or even be
prohibited from developing, manufacturing or selling products requiring these rights or licenses. There is also a risk that legal
disputes may arise as to the rights to technology developed in collaboration with other parties, all with attendant risk, distraction,
expense, and lack of predictability. If we are unable to obtain and maintain sufficient intellectual property protection for our
product candidates, or if the scope of the intellectual property protection is not sufficiently broad, our ability to commercialize
our product candidates successfully and to compete effectively may be adversely affected. We rely upon a combination of
patents, trademarks, trade secrets and confidentiality agreements — either that we own or possess or that are owned or possessed
by our licensors that are licensed to us — to protect the intellectual property related to our technology and product candidates.
When we refer to “ our ” technologies, inventions, patents, provisional patents, patent applications or other intellectual property
rights, we are referring to both the rights that we own or possess as well as those that we license, many of which are critical to
our intellectual property protection and our business. For example, the product candidates and platform technology we have
licensed from our licensors are protected primarily by patent or patent applications of our licensors that we have licensed and as
confidential know- how and trade secrets. If the intellectual property that we rely on is not adequately protected, competitors
may be able to use our technologies and erode or negate any competitive advantage we may have. The patentability of
inventions and the validity, enforceability and scope of patents in the biotechnology field is uncertain because it involves
complex legal, scientific and factual considerations, and it has in recent years been the subject of significant litigation.
Moreover, the standards applied by the U. S. Patent and Trademark Office, or USPTO, and non- U. S. patent offices in granting
patents are not always applied uniformly or predictably. For example, there is no uniform worldwide policy regarding patentable
subject matter or the scope of claims allowable in biotechnology patents. There is no assurance that all potentially relevant prior
art relating to our patents and patent applications is known to us or has been found in the instances where searching was done.
We may be unaware of prior art that could be used to invalidate an issued patent or prevent a pending patent application from
issuing as a patent. There also may be prior art of which we are aware, but which we do not believe affects the validity or
enforceability of a claim of one of our patents or patent applications, which may, nonetheless, ultimately be found to affect the
validity or enforceability of such claim. We also may not be able to obtain full patent protection from provisional patents for
which we have sought or will seek further patent protection. As a consequence of these and other factors, our patent applications
may fail to result in issued patents with claims that cover our product candidates in the U. S. or in other countries. Even if
patents have issued or do successfully issue from patent applications, and even if these patents cover our product candidates,
third parties may challenge the validity, enforceability or scope thereof, which may result in these patents being narrowed,
invalidated or held to be unenforceable. No assurance can be given that if challenged, our patents would be declared by a court
to be valid or enforceable. Even if unchallenged, our patents and patent applications or other intellectual property rights may not
adequately protect our intellectual property, provide exclusivity for our product candidates or prevent others from designing
around our claims. The possibility exists that others will develop products on an independent basis which have the same effect
as our product candidates and which do not infringe our patents or other intellectual property rights, or that others will design
around the claims of patents that we have had issued that cover our product candidates. If the breadth or strength of protection
provided by our patents and patent applications with respect to our product candidates is threatened, it could jeopardize our
ability to commercialize our product candidates and dissuade companies from collaborating with us. We may also desire to seek
a license from a third party who owns intellectual property that may be useful for providing exclusivity for our product
candidates, or for providing the ability to develop and commercialize a product candidate in an unrestricted manner. There is no
guarantee that we will be able to obtain a license from such a third party on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. In addition,
the United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO) and various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance
with a number of procedural, documentary, fee payment and other similar provisions during the patent application process.



While an inadvertent lapse can in many cases be cured by payment of a late fee or by other means in accordance with the
applicable rules, there are situations in which noncompliance can result in abandonment or lapse of the patent or patent
application, resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. We and our licensors have filed a
number of patent applications covering our product candidates or methods of using or making those product candidates. We
cannot offer any assurances about which, if any, patents will be issued with respect to these pending patent applications, the
breadth of any such patents that are ultimately issued or whether any issued patents will be found invalid and unenforceable or
will be threatened by third parties. Because patent applications in the U. S. and most other countries are confidential for a period
of time after filing, and some remain so until issued, we cannot be certain that we or our licensors were the first to file any patent
application related to a product candidate. We or our licensors may also become involved in proceedings regarding our patents,
including patent infringement lawsuits, interference or derivation proceedings, oppositions, and inter partes and post- grant
review proceedings before the USPTO, the European Patent Office and other non- U. S. patent offices. If we are unable to
protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets, the value of our technology could be negatively impacted and our business would
be harmed. In addition to the protection afforded by patents we hold rights to, we also rely on trade secret protection for certain
aspects of our intellectual property. However, trade secrets are difficult to protect. We seek to protect these trade secrets, in part,
by entering into non- disclosure and confidentiality agreements with parties who have access to them, such as our employees,
consultants, independent contractors, advisors, contract manufacturers, suppliers and other third parties. We also enter into
confidentiality and invention or patent assignment agreements with employees and certain consultants. Any party with whom we
have executed such an agreement may breach that agreement and disclose our proprietary information, including our trade
secrets, and we might not be able to obtain adequate remedies for such breaches. Enforcing a claim that a party illegally
disclosed or misappropriated a trade secret is difficult, expensive and time- consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable.
Additionally, if the steps taken to maintain our trade secrets are deemed inadequate, we may have insufficient recourse against
third parties for misappropriating the trade secret. Further, if any of our trade secrets were to be lawfully obtained or
independently developed by a competitor, we would have no right to prevent such third party, or those to whom they
communicate such technology or information, from using that technology or information to compete with us. If any of our trade
secrets were to be disclosed to or independently developed by a competitor, it could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects. Third- party claims of intellectual property infringement may
prevent or delay our development and commercialization efforts. Our success will depend in part on our ability to
commercialize our product candidates without infringing the proprietary rights of others. While some of the intellectual property
utilized in our product candidates is owned, some is licensed from our licensors, who hold patents and provisional patents in
their names. We have not conducted extensive freedom of use patent searches and no assurance can be given that patents do not
exist or could be issued which would have an adverse effect on our ability to market our technology or maintain our competitive
position with respect to our technology. We also cannot be sure that patents or provisional patents filed by others are valid or
will be upheld if challenged. It is possible that there are additional patents that may cover certain other aspects of technology
used in our product candidates that is not covered by our licensed intellectual property. If our licensed technology or other
subject matter are claimed under other United States patents or other international patents or are otherwise protected by third
party proprietary rights, we or our licensors may be subject to infringement actions. In such event, we may challenge the validity
of such patents or other proprietary rights or we may be required to obtain licenses from such companies in order to develop,
manufacture or market our technology. There can be no assurances that we would be successful in a challenge or be able to
obtain such licenses or that such licenses, if available, could be obtained on commercially reasonable terms. Furthermore, the
failure to succeed in a challenge, develop a commercially viable alternative or obtain needed licenses could have significant
adverse consequences to the development of our pipeline. Adverse consequences include delays in marketing some or all of our
product candidates based on our technology or the inability to proceed with the development, manufacture or sale of products
requiring such licenses. If we defend ourselves against charges of patent infringement or to protect our proprietary rights against
third parties, substantial costs will be incurred regardless of whether we are successful. Such proceedings are typically
protracted with no certainty of success. An adverse outcome could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties and force us
to curtail or cease the research and development of our technology. Parties making claims against us may obtain injunctive or
other equitable relief, which could effectively block our ability to further develop and commercialize our product candidates.
Defense of these claims, regardless of their merit, would involve substantial litigation expense and would be a substantial
diversion of resources from our business. In the event of a successful claim of infringement against us, we may have to pay
substantial damages, including treble damages and attorneys’ fees for willful infringement, pay royalties, redesign our infringing
products or obtain one or more licenses from third parties, which may be impossible or require substantial time and monetary
expenditure. Additionally, parties making claims against us may be able to sustain the costs of complex patent litigation more
effectively than we can because they have substantially greater resources. Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of
discovery required in connection with intellectual property litigation or administrative proceedings, there is a risk that some of
our confidential information could be compromised by disclosure. In addition, any uncertainties resulting from the initiation and
continuation of any litigation could have a material adverse effect on our ability to raise additional funds or otherwise have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. We may not be able to protect
our intellectual property rights throughout the world. Filing, prosecuting and defending patents on our product candidates in all
countries throughout the world would be prohibitively expensive, and our intellectual property rights in some countries outside
the United States can be less extensive than those in the United States. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not
protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as federal and state laws in the United States. Consequently, we may not be
able to prevent third parties from practicing our inventions in all countries outside the United States, or from selling or
importing products made using our inventions in and into the United States or other jurisdictions. Competitors may use our



technologies in jurisdictions where we have not obtained patent protection to develop their own products and may also export
infringing products to territories where we have patent protection, but enforcement is not as strong as that in the United States.
These products may compete with our products and our patents or other intellectual property rights may not be effective or
sufficient to prevent them from competing. Risks Related to our Common Stock Our stock price has been and will likely
continue to be volatile and may decline regardless of our operating performance. Our stock price has fluctuated in the past and
can be expected to be volatile in the future. From Jaly+September 29 , 262+-2022 through June-36-September 29 , 2622-2023
, the reported sale price of our Common Stock has fluctuated between $ 424 . 55-47 and $ +0 . 93-40 per share. The stock
market in general and the market for biotechnology companies in particular have experienced extreme volatility that has often
been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. As a result of this volatility, investors may experience
losses on their investment in our Common Stock. The market price of our Common Stock may be influenced by many factors,
including the following: @ negative publicity; ® our compliance with Nasdaq rules and regulations; e the success of competitive
products or technologies; ® regulatory actions with respect to our product candidates or products or our competitors’ product
candidates or products; @ actual or anticipated changes in our growth rate relative to our competitors; ® announcements by us or
our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, collaborations, or capital commitments; ®
results of clinical studies of our product candidates or those of our competitors; ® regulatory or legal developments in the U. S.
and other countries; ® developments or disputes concerning patent applications, issued patents or other proprietary rights; e the
recruitment or departure of key personnel; e the level of expenses related to any of our product candidates or clinical
development programs; @ the results of our efforts to in- license or acquire additional product candidates or products; e actual or
anticipated changes in estimates as to financial results, development timelines or recommendations by securities analysts; ®
variations in our financial results or those of companies that are perceived to be similar to us; e fluctuations in the valuation of
companies perceived by investors to be comparable to us; @ inconsistent trading volume levels of our shares; ® announcement or
expectation of additional financing efforts; @ sales of our Common Stock by us, our insiders or our other stockholders; ® market
conditions in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology sectors; ® general economic, industry and market conditions; and e the
other risks described in this “ Risk Factors ” section. In addition, the stock markets in general, and the markets for biotechnology
and pharmaceutical stocks in particular, have experienced significant volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. Sales of a substantial number of shares of our Common Stock in the public market could
cause our stock price to fall. A significant portion of our Common Stock is held in restricted form, and consequentially a
minority of our outstanding Common Stock actively trades in the public markets. Sales of a substantial number of such shares of
our Common Stock in the public market could occur at any time. While a large majority of such shares are unregistered and
subject to volume restrictions on sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, these restrictions could be lifted if any of
our stockholders ceased to be bound by such restrictions. These sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large
number of qhare% mtend to %ell qhare% could reduce the market prlce of our Common Stock. We pfeﬁeﬂs-l-y—feeeﬁfed-ﬂeﬁees—ef

incur 1ncreaqed costs as a result of being a pubhc company and our management expect% to devote substantial time to public
company compliance programs. As a public company, we have incurred and will continue to incur significant legal, accounting
and other expenses. We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, which require, among other things, that
we file with the SEC annual, quarterly, and current reports with respect to our business and financial condition. In addition, the
Sarbanes- Oxley Act, as well as rules subsequently adopted by the SEC and The Nasdaq Stock Market to implement provisions
of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act, impose significant requirements on public companies, including requiring establishment and
maintenance of effective disclosure and financial controls and changes in corporate governance practices. As a Smaller



Reporting Company and Non- accelerated Filer, we are able to take advantage of certain accommodations afforded to such
companies, including being exempt from the requirement to conduct an audit of our internal controls. In the event we no longer
qualify as a Smaller Reporting Company and Non- accelerated Filer, we will lose such accommodations, which could involve
significant costs that could affect our operations. Changes in reporting requirements, the current political environment and the
potential for future regulatory reform may lead to substantial new regulations and disclosure obligations, which may lead to
additional compliance costs and impact the manner in which we operate our business in ways we cannot currently anticipate.
The rules and regulations applicable to public companies have substantially increased our legal and financial compliance costs
and make some activities more time- consuming and costly. To the extent these requirements divert the attention of our
management and personnel from other business concerns, they could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Because we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our capital stock in the
foreseeable future, capital appreciation, if any, will be the sole source of potential gain for our stockholders. We have never
declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain all of our future earnings, if any, to finance
the growth and development of our business. As a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our Common Stock will be the sole
source of gain for our stockholders for the foreseeable future. Future sales and issuances of our Common Stock or rights to
purchase Common Stock, including pursuant to our equity incentive plans, could result in additional dilution of the percentage
ownership of our stockholders and could cause our stock price to fall. We expect that significant additional capital will be
needed in the future to continue our planned operations. To raise capital, we may sell substantial amounts of Common Stock or
securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock in one or more transactions at prices and in a manner, we
determine from time to time. These future issuances of Common Stock or Common Stock- related securities, together with the
exercise of outstanding options or warrants, and any additional shares that may be issued in connection with acquisitions or
licenses, if any, may result in material dilution to our investors. Such sales may also result in material dilution to our existing
stockholders, and new investors could gain rights, preferences, and privileges senior to those of holders of our Common Stock.
Pursuant to our equity incentive plans, our eempensatton-Compensation eemmittee-Committee is authorized to grant equity-
based incentive awards to our employees, non- employee directors and consultants. Future grants of RSUs, options and other
equity awards and issuances of Common Stock under our equity incentive plans will result in dilution and may have an adverse
effect on the market price of our Common Stock. Some terms of our charter documents and Delaware law may have anti-
takeover effects that could discourage an acquisition of us by others, even if an acquisition would be beneficial to our
stockholders and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management. Our Certificate of
Incorporation, and our Bylaws, as well as Delaware law, could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us or increase
the cost of acquiring us, even if doing so would benefit our stockholders, or remove our current management. These include
terms that: @ permit our Board of Directors to issue up to 10, 000, 000 shares of preferred stock, with any rights, preferences,
and privileges as they may designate; ® provide that all vacancies on our Board of Directors, including as a result of newly
created directorships, may, except as otherwise required by law, be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of directors then
in office, even if less than a quorum; e provide that stockholders seeking to present proposals before a meeting of stockholders
or to nominate candidates for election as directors at a meeting of stockholders must provide advance notice in writing, and also
specify requirements as to the form and content of a stockholder’ s notice; and e de not provide for cumulative voting rights,
thereby allowing the holders of a majority of the shares of Common Stock entitled to vote in any election of directors to elect all
of the directors standing for election. Any of the factors listed above may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders
to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our Board of
Directors, who are responsible for appointing the members of our management. In addition, because we are incorporated in
Delaware, we are governed by Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which may discourage, delay or prevent
someone from acquiring us or merging with us whether or not it is desired by or beneficial to our stockholders. Under Delaware
law, a corporation may not, in general, engage in a business combination with any holder of 15 % or more of its capital stock
unless the holder has held the stock for three years or, among other things, the Board of Directors has approved the transaction.
Any term of our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of delaying or deterring a change in
control could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of our Common Stock and could
also affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for our Common Stock. Risks Related To Our Business Operations
and Managing Growth If our operations require a full time Chief Medical Officer (“ CMO ”), and we are not able to hire a full
time CMO to manage our clinical operations or if our current Chief Executive Officer (“ CEO ), Chief Financial Officer (“ CFO
), Chief Operating Officer (“ COO ) or key scientific personnel cease to serve, our business will be harmed. Currently, our
management team is led by Dr. Mark Dybul, the Chief Executive Officer, Luisa Puche, our Chief Financial Officer, and
Francois Binette, our Chief Operating Officer. If Dr. Dybul, Ms. Puche or Mr. Binette should cease to serve, our business
operations may suffer. Additionally, we may in the future require a Chief Medical Officer, and if we are unable to hire a full-
time CMO, our business operations and the continued development of our product candidates may suffer. In addition, we are
dependent on our continued ability to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified additional management and scientific
personnel. If we are not able to retain our management and to attract, on acceptable terms, additional qualified personnel
necessary for the continued development of our business, we might not be able to sustain our operations or grow. We have
limited corporate 1nfrastructure and may experlence dlfﬁcultles in managlng growth As of June 30, 292—2—2023 we had 22-12
full time employees —In v S e

%%—we—have—l%—fuﬁ—&me—eﬁlp}eyees—and we rely on thlrd- party contractors for the provision of profess10nal scientific,
regulatory, and other services. As our development and commercialization plans and strategies develop, we may need additional
managerial, scientific, operational, financial, and other resources. Our management may need to divert a disproportionate



amount of its attention away from our day- to- day operations and devote a substantial amount of time to managing these growth
activities. We might not be able to effectively manage the expansion of our operations, which may result in weaknesses in our
infrastructure, operational inefficiencies, loss of business opportunities, loss of employees and reduced productivity among
remaining employees. Our expected growth could require significant capital expenditures and may divert financial resources
from other projects, such as the development of our current and potential future product candidates. If our management is unable
to effectively manage our growth, our expenses may increase more than expected and our ability to generate and grow revenue
could be reduced and we might not be able to implement our business strategy. Our future financial performance, our ability to
commercialize product candidates, develop a scalable infrastructure and compete effectively will depend, in part, on our ability
to effectively manage any future growth. If we, our service providers, or third parties fail to comply with environmental and
health and safety laws and regulations, we could become subject to fines or penalties or incur costs that could harm our business.
If we, our service providers, or any third parties engaged in the development of our product candidates fail to comply with laws
regulating the protection of the environment, health and animal and human safety, we could be subject to enforcement actions
and our business prospects could be adversely affected. Our research and development activities, and the research and
development activities of our service providers and any third parties engaged in development of our product candidates, may
involve the use of hazardous materials and chemicals or other regulated activities. In conjunction with our service providers and
other third parties, we are also engaged in pre- clinical studies using live animals and samples of infectious diseases. Failure to
adequately handle and dispose of hazardous materials or to meet various standards imposed by federal, state, local or foreign
regulators could lead to liabilities for resulting damages, which could be substantial. We also may be subject to numerous
environmental, health and workplace safety laws and regulations, including those governing laboratory procedures, exposure to
blood- borne pathogens and the handling of bio- hazardous materials. If we, our service providers, or any third parties engaged
in development of our product candidates fail to comply with applicable federal, state, local or foreign laws or regulations, we
could be subject to enforcement actions, which could adversely affect our ability to develop, market and sell our product
candidates successfully and could harm our reputation and lead to reduced acceptance of our product candidates. These
enforcement actions may include: e restrictions on, or prohibitions against, marketing our product candidates; ® restrictions on
importation of our product candidates; ® suspension of review or refusal to approve new or pending applications; @ suspension
or withdrawal of product approvals; @ product seizures; ® injunctions; and e civil and criminal penalties and fines. We rely
upon information technology and any failure, inadequacy, interruption or security lapse of that technology, including any cyber
security incidents, could harm our ability to operate our business effectively. Our business operations could suffer in the event
of system failure. Despite the implementation of security measures, our internal computer systems and those of our contract
research organizations, and other contractors and consultants are vulnerable to damage from computer viruses, unauthorized
access, natural disasters, terrorism, war and telecommunication and electrical failures. If such an event were to occur and cause
interruptions in our operations, it could result in a material disruption of our product development programs. For example, the
loss of formulas or data from completed or ongoing or planned pre- clinical studies could result in delays in our regulatory
approval efforts and significantly increase our costs to recover or reproduce the data. To the extent that any disruption or
security breach were to result in a loss of or damage to our data or applications, or inappropriate disclosure of confidential or
proprietary information, we could incur liability and further development of our product candidates could be delayed. Our
business plan may lead to the initiation of one or more product development programs, the discontinuation of one or more
development programs, or the execution of one or more transactions that you do not agree with or that you do not perceive as
favorable to your investment in our Common Stock. We are pursuing a strategy to leverage our clinical experience and expertise
for the clinical development and regulatory approval of our gene therapy product candidates. As part of our ongoing business
strategy, we continue to explore potential opportunities to acquire or license new product candidates and to collaborate on our
existing products in development. We cannot be certain that our product candidates will be successfully developed, or that the
early clinical trial results of these product candidates will be predictive of future clinical trial results. During 2022, we decided
to abandon our pan- coronavirus and influenza pipelines as the results did not support further development. We again may
determine at any time that one or more of our in- licensed product candidates is not suitable for continued development due to
cost, feasibility of obtaining regulatory approvals or any other reason, and may terminate the related license. Our business plan
requires us to be successful in a number of challenging, uncertain and risky activities, including pursuing development of our
gene therapy product candidates in indications for which we have limited or no human clinical data, designing and executing a
nonclinical and / or clinical development program for our product candidates, building internal or outsourced gene therapy
capabilities, converting early stage gene therapy research efforts into clinical development opportunities, identifying additional
promising new assets for development that are available for acquisition or in- license and that fit our strategic focus and
identifying potential partners to collaborate on our products. We may not be successful at one or more of the activities required
for us to execute this business plan. In addition, we may consider other strategic alternatives, such as mergers, acquisitions,
divestitures, joint ventures, partnerships and collaborations. We cannot be sure when or if any type of transaction will result.
Even if we pursue a transaction, such transaction may not be consistent with our stockholders’ expectations or may not
ultimately be favorable for our stockholders, either in the shorter or longer term. There can be no assurance that the
Transaction will be fully realized or may take longer to realize than expected; the possibility that shareholders of
Renovaro may not approve the issuance of new shares of Renovaro common stock in the proposed Transaction or that
shareholders of Renovaro may not approve the proposed Transaction; the risk that a condition to closing of the proposed
Transaction may not be satisfied, that either party may terminate the Transaction Agreement or that the closing of the
proposed Transaction might be delayed or not occur at all. Our growth prospects and the future value of our Company are
primarily dependent on the progress of our ongoing and planned development programs for our product candidates as well as
the outcome of our ongoing business development efforts and pipeline progression, together with the amount of our remaining



available cash. The development of our product candidates and the outcome of our ongoing business development efforts and
pipeline are highly uncertain. We expect to continue to reassess and make changes to our existing development programs and
pipeline strategy. Our plans for our development programs may be affected by the results of competitors’ clinical trials of
product candidates addressing our current target indications, and our business development efforts and pipeline progression may
also be affected by the results of competitors’ ongoing research and development efforts. We may modify, expand or terminate
some or all of our development programs, clinical trials or collaborative research programs at any time as a result of new
competitive information or as the result of changes to our product pipeline or business development strategy. If serious adverse
events or other undesirable side effects or safety concerns attributable to our product candidates occur, they may adversely
affect or delay our clinical development and commercialization of some or all of our product candidates. Undesirable side
effects or safety concerns caused by our product candidates could cause us or regulatory authorities to interrupt, delay or halt our
clinical trials and could result in a more restrictive 1abe1 or the delay or demal of regulatory approval If Al-t-heugh—ne—treatment-
related serious adverse events (“ SAEs ) have o y ndidates
treatment—related-SAEs-or other undesirable s1de effects or safety concerns, or unexpected characterlstlcs attnbutable to our
product candidates are observed in any future clinical trials, they may adversely affect or delay our clinical development and
commercialization of the effected product candidate, and the occurrence of these events could have a material adverse effect on
our business and financial prospects. Results of our future clinical trials could reveal a high and unacceptable severity and
prevalence of adverse side effects. In such an event, our trials could be suspended or terminated and the FDA or other regulatory
agency could order us to cease further development of or deny approval of our product candidates for any or all targeted
indications. The drug- related side effects could affect patient recruitment or the ability of enrolled patients to complete the trial
or result in potential product liability claims. Additionally, if any of our product candidates receives marketing approval and we
or others later identify undesirable or unacceptable side effects or safety concerns caused by these product candidates, a number
of potentially significant negative consequences could result, including: e regulatory authorities may withdraw, suspend, or
limit approvals of such preduet-products and require us to take them off the market; ® regulatory authorities may require the
addition of labeling statements, specific warnings, a contraindication or field alerts to physicians and pharmacies; ® regulatory
authorities may require a medication guide outlining the risks of such side effects for distribution to patients, or that we
implement a REMS or REMS- like plan to ensure that the benefits of the product outweigh its risks; ® we may be required to
change the way a product is distributed or administered, conduct additional clinical trials, or change the labeling of a product; e
we may be required to conduct additional post- marketing studies or surveillance; ® we may be subject to limitations on how we
may promote the product; e sales of the product may decrease significantly; ® we may be subject to regulatory investigations, @
we may be subject to government enforcement actions, litigation, or product liability claims; and @ our products may become
less competitive, or our reputation may suffer. Any of these events could prevent us or any collaborators from achieving or
maintaining market acceptance of our product candidates or could substantially increase commercialization costs and expenses,
which in turn could delay or prevent us from generating revenue from the sale of our product candidates. We have no
manufacturing experience, and the failure to comply with all applicable manufacturing regulations and requirements could have
a materially adverse effect on our business. We have never manufactured products in the highly regulated environment of
pharmaceutical manufacturing, and our team has limited experience in the manufacture of drug therapies. There are numerous
regulations and requirements that must be maintained to obtain licensure and permitting required prior to the commencement of
manufacturing, as well as additional requirements to continue manufacturing pharmaceutical products. In addition, we do not
have the resources at this time to acquire or lease suitable facilities. If we or our CMO fail to comply with regulations, to obtain
the necessary licenses and knowhow or to obtain the requisite financing in order to comply with all applicable regulations and to
contract with, own or lease the required facilities in order to manufacture our products, we could be forced to cease operations,
which would cause you to lose all of your investment in our Common Stock. In addition, the FDA and other regulatory
authorities require that product candidates and drug products be manufactured according to cGMP. Any failure by our third-
party manufacturers to comply with cGMP could lead to a shortage of our product candidates. In addition, such failure could be
the basis for action by the FDA to withdraw approval, if granted to us, and for other regulatory enforcement action, including
Warning Letters, product seizure, injunction or other civil or criminal penalties. Product candidates that we develop may have to
compete with other products and product candidates for access to manufacturing facilities. There are a limited number of
manufacturers that operate under cGMP regulations and that are both capable of manufacturing for us and willing to do so. If we
need to find another source of drug substance or drug product manufacturing for our product candidates, we may not be able to
identify, or reach agreement with, commercial- scale manufacturers on commercially reasonably terms, or at all. If third parties
that we engage in the future to manufacture a product for commercial sale or for our clinical trials, should cease to continue to
do so for any reason, we likely would experience significant delays in obtaining sufficient quantities of product for us to meet
commercial demand or to advance our clinical trials while we identify and qualify replacement suppliers. If for any reason we
are unable to obtain adequate supplies of any product candidate that we develop, or the drug substances used to manufacture it,
it will be more difficult for us to compete effectively, generate revenue, and further develop our products. In addition, if we are
unable to assure a sufficient quantity of the drug for patients with rare diseases or conditions, we may lose any FDA Orphan
Drug designation to which the product otherwise would be entitled. We may, in the future, choose to seek FDA Orphan Drug
designation for one or more of our current or future €NS-product candidates. Even if we obtain Orphan Drug designation from
the FDA for a product candidate, there are limitations to the exclusivity afforded by such designation. In the U. S., the company
that first obtains FDA approval for a designated orphan drug for the specified rare disease or condition receives orphan drug
marketing exclusivity for that drug for a period of seven years. This orphan drug exclusivity prevents the FDA from approving
another application, including a full NDA to market the same drug for the same orphan indication, except in very limited
circumstances, including when the FDA concludes that the later drug is safer, more effective or makes a major contribution to




patient care. For purposes of small molecule drugs, the FDA defines ““ same drug ” as a drug that contains the same active
moiety and is intended for the same use as the drug in question. To obtain Orphan Drug status for a drug that shares the same
active moiety as an already approved drug, it must be demonstrated to the FDA that the drug is safer or more effective than the
approved orphan designated drug, or that it makes a major contribution to patient care. In addition, a designated orphan drug
may not receive orphan drug exclusivity if it is approved for a use that is broader than the indication for which it received
orphan designation. In addition, orphan drug exclusive marketing rights in the U. S. may be lost if the FDA later determines that
the request for designation was materially defective or if the manufacturer is unable to assure sufficient quantity of the drug to
meet the needs of patients with the rare disease or condition or if another drug with the same active moiety is determined to be
safer, more effective, or represents a major contribution to patient care. 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments Not applicable. Item 2.

Propertle% The Company currently leases the followrng properties: Location Use Terms 5904+-W—Otympte-Blvd;-Suite-419-Fes

Gasﬁ-l-la—]:es—Ange}es—GxHG%Q—ZOSO Century Park East Sulte 906 Loq Angeleq CA 90067 Headquarters The Company
entered into a Lease Agreement on June 19, 2018 for our corporate headquarters located at Century City Medical Plaza. We
have a ten- year lease that was for approximately 2, 453 square feet at this location. In February 2019, we extended our
corporate headquarters to encompass the adjoining suite for approximately 1, 101 square feet, bringing the total workspace to 3,
554 square feet. The new base rent for this leased premises increases by 3 % each year over the term, and ranges from $ 17, 770
per month as of the date of the amendment until the end of the first year to $ 23, 186 per month for the tenth year. The
additional suite was in the form of an amendment to the original lease and will expire on the same date as the original lease. The
Company was entltled to a total of § 148, 168 in COHtrlbuthl’N toward tenant 1mp1 ovements for both %paces eﬂ—}une%—ZGQQ—

sub—tease—Item 3. Legal Proceedings Securities Class Action Litigation. On July 26, 2022 and July 28, 2022, securities class
action complaints (the former, the “ Chow Action ” and the latter, the “ Manici Action ) were filed by purported
stockholders of ours in the United States District Court for the Central District of California against us and certain of our current
and former officers and directors. The complaints allege, among other things, that the defendants violated Sections 10 (b) and
20 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Rule 10b- 5 thereunder, by making false and misleading
statements and omissions of material fact in connection with the Company’ s relationship with Serhat Giimriikcii and its
commercial prospects. The complaints seek unspecified damages, interest, fees, and costs. On November 22, 2022, the Manici
Action was voluntarily dismissed without prejudice, but the Chow action remains pending. The defendants did not
respond to the complaint in the Manici action and have not yet responded to the eomptaints— complaint in the Chow action.
The Company intends to contest this matter but expresses no opinion as to the likelihood of a favorable outcome . Federal
Derivative Litigation. On September 22, 2022, Samuel E. Koenig filed a shareholder derivative action in the United States
District Court for the Central District of California. On January 19, 2023, John Solak filed a substantially similar shareholder
derivative action in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. Both derivative actions recite similar
underlying facts as those alleged in the Securities Class Action Litigation. The actions, filed on behalf of the Company, name
Serhat Giimriikcii and certain of the Company’ s current and former directors as defendants. The actions also name the
Company as a nominal defendant. The actions allege violations of Sections 14 (a) and 20 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and also set out claims for breach of fiduciary duty, contribution and indemnification, aiding and abetting, and gross
mismanagement. Plaintiffs do not quantify any alleged injury, but seek damages, disgorgement, restitution, and other costs and
expenses. On January 24, 2023, the United States District Court for the Central District of California stayed the Koenig matter
pending resolution of the defendants’ anticipated motion to dismiss in the Securities Class Action Litigation. On April 6, 2023,
the United States District Court for the District of Delaware stayed the Solak matter pending resolution of the
defendants’ anticipated motion to dismiss in the Securities Class Action Litigation. The defendants have not yet responded
to either complaint . The Company intends to contest these matters but expresses no opinion as to the likelihood of
favorable outcomes . State Derivative Litigation. On October 20, 2022, Susan Midler filed a shareholder derivative action in
the Superior Court of California, Los Angeles County, reciting similar underlying facts as those alleged in the Securities Class
Action Litigation. The action, filed on behalf of the Company, names Serhat Giimriikcii and certain of the Company’ s current
and former directors as defendants. The action also names the Company as a nominal defendant. The action sets out claims for
breaches of fiduciary duty, contribution and indemnification, aiding and abetting, and gross mismanagement. Plaintiff does not
quantify any alleged injury, but seeks damages, disgorgement, restitution, and other costs and expenses. On January 20, 2023,
the Court stayed the Midler matter pending resolution of the defendants’ anticipated motion to dismiss in the Securities
Class Action Litigation. The Court also set a status conference for November 6, 2023. The defendants have not yet
responded to the complaint. The Company intends to contest this matter but expresses no opinion as to the likelihood of a
favorable outcome. On October 21, 2022, the Company filed a Complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California for
the County of Los Angeles against Serhat Glimriikcii, William Anderson Wittekind (* Wittekind ”) , G - Tech BieEEE-, SG &
AW Holdings LLC, and SRI SeraphResearehInstitute- The Complaint alleges that the defendants engaged in a “ concerted,



deliberate scheme to alter, falsify, and misrepresent to the Company the results of multiple studies supporting its f+Hepatitis B 4
and SARS- CoV- 2 /influenza pipelines. ” Specifically, “ Defendants manipulated negative results to reflect positive outcomes
from various studies, and even fabricated studies out of whole cloth. ” As a result of the defendants’ conduct, the Company
claims that it « pdld applo\nndlely $ 25 million to Defendants and third- parties that it would not otherwise have paid.

i On April 21,2023, defend-defendants Wittekind,G- Tech,SG & AW Holdings
LLC,and SRI filed a demurrer with respect to some,but not all,of the Company’ s claims,as well as a motion to strike.On
September 6,2023,the court denied in part and granted in part the pending motions.On September 7,2023,the court
entered a Case Management Order setting the Final Status Conference,trial,and other intervening deadlines.We will
continue to pursue our claims against this-elaim-these defendants .On March 1,2021, the Company’ s former Enoehian
BieSeienees-Chief Financial Officer,Robert Wolfe and his company,Crossfield,Inc., filed a C omplaint in the U.S.District Court
for the District of Vermont against the Company, EneehiarrRenovaroe BioSciences Denmark ApS,and certain directors and
officers.In the Complaint,Mr.Wolfe and Crosstield,Inc.asserted claims for abuse of process and malicious
prosecution,alleging,inter alia,that the Company lacked probable cause to file and prosecute an earlier action,and sought millions
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allegatlons in the Complalnt relate to an earlier action ﬁled by the Company and Renovaro B10Sc1ences Denmark ApSin
the Vermont Superior Court, Orange Civil Division. On March 3, 2022, the court partially granted the Company’ s
motion to dismiss, dismissing the abuse of process claim against all defendants have-netyetanswered-and all claims against
Mark Dybul and Henrik Grenfeldt- Serensen. On November 29, 2022, the Company filed a motion for summary
judgment with respect to the sole remaining claim of malicious prosecution. On August 24, 2023, the court denied the
motion for summary judgment. On September 7, 2023, the Company moved for reconsideration of the court’ s order.
The Company denies the allegations set forth in the €empany—s-Complaint and will continue to vigorously defend against
the remaining claim . On Deeember28-June 7 , 2622-2023 , the-Company reeetved-a-demandetteronbehalf-of Weird
Science LLC (“ Weird Science ), William-Andersen-Wittekind, the William Anderson Wittekind 2020 Annuity Trust, the
William Anderson Wittekind 2021 Annuity Trust, the Dybul 2020 Angel Annuity Trust, and the Ty Mabry 2021 Annuity Trust
alteging-(collectively, the “ Trusts ) (collectively, “ Plaintiffs ) filed a Verified Complaint against the Company in the
Court of Chancery of Delaware. Plaintiffs allege that the Company breached the February 16, 2018 Investor Rights
Agreement between the Company, Weird Science, and RS Group ApS (the “ Investor Rights Agreement ) . Speetfteally
According to the Verified Complaint , the Investor Rights Agreement required the Company to (i) notify all “ Holders ”
of “ Registrable Securities ” at least 30 days prior to filing a registration statement and (ii) afford such Holders an
opportunity to have the-their Registrable Securities included in such registration statement. Plaintiffs allege that the
Company breached these registration rights by failing to provide the required notice in connection with S- 3 registration
statements filed by the Company on July 13, 2020 and February 11, 2022. Plaintiffs seek compensatory damages, pre-
and post- judgment interest, costs, and attorneys’ fees. The Company denies Plaintiffs’ allegations and intends to
vigorously defend against the claim. On August 24, 2023, counsel on behalf of Weird Science, Wittekind, individually,
and Wittekind, as trustee of the Trusts served a demand to inspect fetter-aleges-that-the Company ’ s books and records
(the “ breached-Demand ) pursuant to Delaware General Corporation Law, § 220 (“ Section 220 ). The Demand seeks
the Company’ s books and records in connection with a various issues identified in the Demand. The Company takes its

obligations under theJnvestorRights-Agreement-Section 220 seriously and, to previde-the requisite-thirty-daysnetiee-extent
that the requests are proper under Sectlon 220, 1ntends to comply Hel&ers—e-ﬂRegtsfrab-le—Seettrﬁes—r&eenﬂeeﬁen—\\ 11 h -SEG

t-hese—those 0b11gat10ns allegdtlons dlld mtends to V1<ror0usly defend against...... tov 1gor0usly del‘end against the remaining
claim . Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures. PART II Item 5. Market for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder

Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Market Information and Holders of our Common Stock Our Common Stock
trades on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ ENOGB-- RENB . As of Febraary27September 29 , 2023, the
Company had 55-65 , 785-698 , 524+-144 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding and approximately +96-194
stockholders of record. The actual number of stockholders is greater than this number of record holders and includes
stockholders who are beneficial owners but whose shares are held in street name by brokers and other nominees. Recent Sales
of Unregistered Securities Nerre-On June 20, 2023, the Company entered into a purchase agreement (the “ Purchase
Agreement ) with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC (“ Lincoln Park ), which provides that, upon the terms and subject
to the conditions and limitations set forth therein, the Company may sell to Lincoln Park up to Twenty Million Dollars ($
20, 000, 000) of shares of its Common Stock over the 36- month term of the Purchase Agreement. Concurrently with
entering into the Purchase Agreement, the Company also entered into a registration rights agreement with Lincoln Park,
pursuant to which it agreed to provide Lincoln Park with certain registration rights related to the shares issued under
the Purchase Agreement (the “ Registration Rights Agreement ”’). On June 20, 2023, we issued 696, 021 shares of
Common Stock (the “ Commitment Shares ”) to Lincoln Park as a fee for its commitment to purchase shares of our
Common Stock under the Purchase Agreement. The issuance and sale of the Commitment Shares was made in reliance
upon the exemption provided in Section 4 (a) (2) of the Securities Act and / or Rule 506 (b) of Regulation D promulgated
thereunder. No other shares were issued in the fourth quarter that were not previously included in a Current Report on
Form 8- K. Company Purchases of Equity Securities None. Dividends The Company has not declared or paid any cash




dividends on its Common Stock and does not intend to declare or pay any cash dividend in the foreseeable future. The payment
of dividends, if any, is within the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Company’ s earnings, if any, its capital
requirements and financial condition and such other factors as the Board may consider. Item 6. [ Reserved ]| Item 7.
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations The following discussion of our
financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our financial statements, and the related notes to
those statements included elsewhere in this report. In addition to the historical financial information, the following discussion
and analysis contains forward- looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially
from those anticipated in these forward- looking statements. Eneehian-Our Business Renovaro BioSciences Inc. is a
biotechnology company committed to developing advanced allogeneic cell and gene therapies to promote stronger immune
system responses potentially for long- term or life- long cancer remission in some of the deadliest cancers, and potentially to
treat or cure serious infectious diseases such as HIV and Hepatitis B virus (HBV) infection. To date, our operations have been
funded by sales of our securities and debt financing. We have never generated any sales revenue and we expect this to continue
until our therapies or products are approved for marketing in the United States and / or Europe. Even if we are successful in
having our therapies or products approved for sale in the United States and / or Europe, we cannot guarantee that a market for
the therapies or products will develop. We may never be profitable. Recent Developments Definitive Agreement with GEDi
Cube On September 28, 2023, Renovaro Biosciences Inc., entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “ Purchase
Agreement ”’) with GEDi Cube Intl Ltd., a private company formed under the laws of England and Wales (“ GEDi Cube
). Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement, Renovaro will acquire 100 % of
the equity interests of GEDi Cube from its equity holders (the “ Sellers ) and GEDi Cube will become a wholly- owned
subsidiary of Renovaro. On September 28, 2023, the board of directors of Renovaro, and the board of managers of GEDi
Cube unanimously approved the Purchase Agreement. The completion of the Transaction is subject to the satisfaction or
waiver of customary closing conditions. The Purchase Agreement contains certain termination rights for both Renovaro
and GEDi Cube (See Note 11- Subsequent Events). August 2023 Private Placement On August 1, 2023, the Company
closed a private placement of 280, S0S units, (the “ Units ), each such Unit consists of (i) one share of the Company’ s
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $ 0. 0001 par value per share and (ii) one common stock purchase warrant to
purchase five shares of the Company’ s common stock, $ 0. 0001 par value per share at a price per Unit equal to $ 7. 13
for aggregate proceeds to the Company of $ 2, 000, 000 in cash. In addition, the Company issued 280, S05 Units in
connection with the conversion of $ 2, 000, 000 of promissory note, as further described below under the heading “
Amendment and Conversion of Previously Issued Promissory Note ”. In connection with the Private Placement, the
Company sold an aggregate of 561, 010 shares of Preferred Stock, which are initially convertible into an aggregate of 5,
610, 100 shares of Common Stock. In connection with the Private Placement, the Company sold Warrants to purchase
an aggregate of 2, 805, 050 shares of Common Stock, which represents S0 % warrant coverage. The Warrants are
exercisable for five years from the date of issuance and have an exercise price of $ 0. 65 per share, payable in cash.
Amendment and Conversion of Previously Issued Promissory Note On July +5-31 , 2622-2023 , eertainrof our-warrant-the
Company and the holders— holder of the Previously Issued Promissory Note agreed to amend the Promissory Note (the «
Fourth Amendment ”), to provide the holder with limited conversion rights in connection with the Private Placement
(the “ Conversion Right ). Per the terms of the Fourth Amendment, the Holder could elect to convert $ 2, 000, 000 of the
outstanding principal balance of the Promissory Note into the Units being offered in the Private Placement at the price
per Unit being paid by the investors in the Private Placement. As mentioned above, on August 1, 2023, Paseco ApS, the
holder of a § 5, 000, 000 promissory note issued by the Company, (the “ Promissory Note ) notified the Company of its
election to exereised— exercise the Conversion Right. Therefore, $ 2, 000, 000 of the outstanding principal balance of the
note was converted into 280, S05 Units, comprised of an aggregate of (i) 280, 505 shares of Preferred Stock and (ii)
warrants-Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1, 256-402 , 666-525 shares of Common Stock . A principal balance for-totat
proeeeds-to-the-Company-of $ 345625, 000, 000 remained outstanding under with-eerresponding-earn—out-distribttiontn-the
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. Going Concern and Management’ s Plans The financial statements included elsewhere herein
for the year ended June 30, 26222023 , were prepared under the assumption that we would continue our operations as a going
concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities during the normal course of business. As
of June 30, 26222023 , we had cash and cash equivalents of $ 9-1 , 472-874 , +42-480 , an accumulated deficit of $ 204-244
345-029 , +97-253 , and total liabilities of $ 42-11 , 843-798 , 845-685 . We have incurred losses from continuing operations,
have used cash in our continuing operations, and are dependent on additional financing to fund operations. These conditions
raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are
issued. The financial statements included elsewhere herein do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects
on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome
of this uncertainty. Management has reduced overhead and administrative costs by streamlining the organization to focus around
two of its therapies (oncology and HIV therapeutic vaccine) in order to reduce operating costs . The Company has also
tailored its workforce to focus on these therapies. Hraddition,management Management has-extended-intends to try to
convert its debt $-—2-millioneonvertible-notes12-months-eut-to equity. The be-payable-onFebruary28;2024;and-the
Company intends to attempt to secure additional required funding through equity or debt financing (see Recent Developments
for most recent funding) . However, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain any sources of funding.
Such additional funding may not be available or may not be available on reasonable terms, and, in the case of equity financing
transactions, could result in significant additional dilution to our stockholders. If we do not obtain required additional equity or
debt funding, our cash resources will be depleted and we could be required to materially reduce or suspend operations, which
would likely have a material adverse effect on our business, stock price and our relationships with third parties with whom we
have business relationships, at least until additional funding is obtained. If we do not have sufficient funds to continue
operations, we could be required to seek bankruptcy protection or other alternatives that could result in our stockholders losing
some or all of their investment in us. Funding that we may receive during fiscal 2623-2024 is expected to be used to satisfy
existing and future obligations and liabilities and working capital needs, to support commercialization of our products and
conduct the clinical and regulatory Worl( to develop our product Candrdates and to begln burldrng Worl(lng caprtal reserves —Fhe

as—&ppfepﬂ&fe— RESULTS OF OPERATIONS Year ended June 30 %922—2023 Compared to the year ended June 30, %92—1—2022
The following table sets forth our revenues, expenses and net income for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2624-.
The financial information below is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report. For the Years Ended June 30, Increase / (Decrease) 2023 2022 $ % Operating Expenses General and administrative $
15,318,198 $ 14, 329, 801 $-988, 397 7 ;-557-990-6;:77H-8H-% Research and development 4, 165, 197 8, 372, 800 +5:-726;
262-(F4 , 347207 , 461603 ) (4750 ) % Indefinite life intangible assets impairment charge 93-18 , 253-960 , 000 93, 253, 000
(74, 293, 000) (80) % Depreciation and amortization 113, 496 123, 590 423-(10 , 535-094) (8) % Total Operating Expenses 38,
556,891 116, 079, $423—- 191 (7464578792677 77 ., 464-522, 300) (67) % LOSS FROM OPERATIONS ( 38, 556, 891) (
116,079, 191) 77, 522, 300 ( 23407892677 67 —494)—(—396—) % Other Income (Expenses) Loss on extinguishment of
contingent consideration liability (419, 182) — (419, 182) 100 % Change in fair value of contingent consideration — 2, 896,
627 (3-2,048-896 , 933-627 ) 5944660~ 195-100 ) % Interest expense ( 580, 344) (372, 844) ( 379-207 , 668-500 ) 56 6,764
2% Gain (loss) on currency transactions ( 32-1 , 634-019 ) 9 32-643-( +66-1, 028) (11, 422 ) % Interest and other income (126,
620) 122, 041 43-(248 , +79168;-862-661) (204) % Total Other Income (Expenses) (1, 127, 165) 2, 645, 833 (3, 447+772 , 896
998 ) 6;-092,-929-( +77143 ) % Loss Before Income Taxes ( 39, 684, 056) ( 113, 433, 358) 73, 749, 302 ( 65 26;-848;883)(86;
584-475-) % Income Tax (Expense) Benefit — (34) 34 -1—25—2—7-6—61%—3-1-9)—(100) % NET LOSS § (H3;433;392- 39, 684, 056
) $ (26-113 , 723433 , 607392 ) 73, 749, 336 ( 65 86;709:785) % For the Years Ended June 30, Increase / (Decrease) 2023
2022 $ % Net Loss $ (39, 684, 056) $ (113, 433,392) § 73, 749, 336 ( 65 26;723;-60H-$586;709;F85324-) % Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) Foreign Currency Translation, net of taxes 554 (19, 602) 36-20 , 582-156 ( 103 56484164 %
Other Comprehensive Loss $ (39, 683, 502) $ (113, 452, 994) $ 73, 769, 492 ( 65 26;-693;-025)1-$(86,759-969325) %
Revenues We are a pre- clinical stage pre- revenue bioteehnology company. We have never generated revenues and have
incurred losses since inception. We do not anticipate earning any revenues until our therapies or products are approved for
marketing and sale. Our operating expenses for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-202+-were $ 38, 556, 891 and $
116, 079, 191 and-, respectively, representing a decrease of & 23;404H787- 77 , respeetively-522 , 300 or representing-an
terease-of $92,677 67 7404-0r396-%. The largest contributors to the irerease-decrease in operating expenses for the year
ended June 30, 20222023 | were the decrease in the non- cash intangible asset impairment of § 74, 93-293 ;-253- 000 (see Note
4 to the Financial Statements) and the inerease-decrease in general-research and administrative-development expenses of § 6-4
,FH207 , 8H-603 partially offset by the deerease-increase in researeh-general and development-administrative expenses of §
7988 , 397 347462-compared to the year ended June 30, 2024-2022 . General and administrative expenses for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-2024-, were $ 15,318,198 and $ 14, 329, 801 and-$F-55%996-, respectively, representing an
increase of $ 6-988 , #H-397 , 8+H5-or 98-7 %. The increase in general and administrative expenses is primarily related to
increases of $ 42, 845-738 . 804-140 in legal fees, $ 865, 911 in salaries and related costs, $ 566, 448 in accounting fees and



$ 302, 130 in insurance costs, partially offset by the decrease of $ 1, 847, 551 in stock- based compensation, $ +495 , 000
485-613-1n security sataries-and-related-costs, $ 353-363 , 984 in 853relatedto-recruiting expenses, and-$ 35+153 |, 928-541 in
fegal-corporate fees and $ 116, 648 in travel expenses . Research and development expenses for the years ended June 30,
2023, and 2022 ;and2024-, were $ 4, 165,197 and $ 8, 372, 800 and-$35;-720,262- respectively, representing a decrease of $
F4 347207 , 461603 or 4750 %. The decrease in research and development expenses is primarily related to $ +6-3 , 766-261 ,
©66-500 in fees related to a collaboratlng partner ﬂ&e—eereﬂaﬁrus—&nd—lﬁﬂ-uerﬁa—lsteeﬁseﬁgreement—that was incurred in the
prior year petiod y in addition to costs with CDMO and CRO partners totaling $ 3
766 , 993—1-69—495 in the prlor year Other Income (Expenses) Net other income (expenses) for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022 a-nd%@%l—was $ (1 127 165) and 2 645, 833 and-, respectively, representing a decrease of $ 3, 447772 ,

e g or +77143 %. The inerease-decrease in other income was due
prundnly to the change in the fair leue of the Contmoent C0ns1derat10n in the amount of $ 5-2 , 944-896 , 666-627 , which
resulted from the mark to market adjustment on the remaining contingent consideration liability and the contingent shares
issued during the perted-prior year, in addition to the loss on extinguishment of contingent consideration liability of $ 419,
182 in the year ended June 30, 2023 . Net Loss Net loss for the years ended June 30, 2022-2023 and June 30, 20242022 was $
39, 684,056 and $ 113, 433, 392 and-$26;723;-607-, respectively, representing af-a inerease-decrease in net loss of $ 86-73 ,
F09-749 | 785-336 or 324-65 %. The inerease-decrease in net loss was primarily due to the decrease of non- cash intangible
asset impairment of $ 74, 93-293 ;253-, 000, the decrease in research and development costs of $ 6-4 , 74207 , 81603 and
the decrease in the change in falr value of contlngent con51deratlon of $ 2 896 627 partlally offset by the $ 988 397

We have hlStOl‘lC'llly satlshed our capltal dnd llqu1d1ty requnements through fundlng from stockholdels the sale of our Common
Stock and warrants, and debt financing. We have never generated any sales revenue to support our operations and we expect this
to continue until our therapies or products are approved for marketing in the United States and / or Europe. Even if we are
successful in having our therapies or products approved for sale in the United States and / or Europe, we cannot guarantee that a
market for the therapies or products will develop. We may never be profitable. As noted above under the heading “ Going
Concern and Management’ s Plans, ” through June 30, 2622-2023 , we have incurred substantial losses. We may need additional
funds for (a) research and development, (b) increases in personnel, and (c¢) the purchase of equipment, specifically to advance
towards an Investigational New Drug Application (IND) following Pre- IND readouts from the FDA for ENOB—- RENB - b&H
DC-11 ., ENOGB— RENB - HV- 12, ENOB- RENB - HV- 01, ENOGB—- RENB - HV- 21 and ENOGB—- RENB - HB- 01. The
availability of any required additional funding cannot be assured. In addition, an adverse outcome in legal or regulatory
proceedings in which we are currently involved or in the future may be involved could adversely affect our liquidity and
financial position. If additional funds are required, we may raise such funds from time to time through public or private sales of
our equity or debt securities. Such financing may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all, and our failure to raise capital
when needed could materially adversely affect our growth plans and our financial condition and results of operations. As of June
30,2622-2023 , the Company had $ 9-1 , +72-874 , +42-480 in cash and Workmg Capltal of $ (8 457 693) as compared to $ 9,
172, 142 in cash and working capital of $ 3, 114, 170 as eompa A-es A :
-l-GG—as—of June 30, %92—1—2022 The decredse in cash of $ H-7 , 492-297 , %6-8—662 1S prunarlly due to the cost of opeldtlons

y s nses-of § 811 , 45774 , 549 609 net-of non—eash-items;traddition-to
fese&rerr&rrd-deve}epmeﬂt—eests-e%-S%J—Z—S-GG— partlally offset by funding totaling $ 4, 8H-515 , 3+2-056 related to private
placements drawdewns—from-the ERCequity-Hne-, and the exercise of warrants and options during the period. On July 8, 2020,

we entered into a purchase agreement (the “ EP€-2020 Purchase Agreement ”’) with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC, (“ LPC”),
pursuant to which LPC is committed to buy, and we had the right, but not the obligation, to sell to LPC up to an aggregate of $
20, 000, 000 of our Common Stock, subject to certain limitations and conditions set forth in the LPC Purchase Agreement,
including a limitation on the number of shares of Common Stock we can put to LPC and the pricing parameters for the sales. In
consideration for entering into the 2020 Purchase Agreement, we issued 139, 567 shares of Common Stock to Lincoln
Park as a commitment fee on July 21, 2020. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company issued 497, 340 shares of
Common Stock for proceeds of $ 4, 676, 399 (see Note 8 of the Financial Statements.) As of October 17, 2022, we no longer
have access to this Purchase Agreement. On June 20, 2023, we entered into a purchase agreement (the “ 2023 Purchase
Agreement ) with LPC, pursuant to which the Company may sell and issue to LPC, and LPC is obligated to purchase,
up to $ 20, 000, 000 of shares of our Common Stock over the 36- month term of the purchase agreement (see Note 8 of the
Financial Statements). Pursuant to a private placement offering in March 2023 | the Company issued 42 , 245-378 , 49070
shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 1, 189, 036 shares of Common Stock (“ Purchase Warrants ) resulting
in proceeds of $ 52, 711, 666-0000 ;-866-in a private placement offering . The Company effected the issuances of the shares
of Common Stock from March 45-13 , 20242023 to June-9-March 29 , 2624-2023 . The Purchase Warrants were
immediately exercisable and had an exercise term of five years with an exercise price of $ 1. 14 per share. The combined
purchase price for one share of Common Stock and one Purchase Warrant was $ 1. 14 per share . The private placement
was made directly by the Company to persons who are not U. S. persons in reliance upon Regulation S of the Securities Act of
1933. No underwriter or placement agent was engaged by the Company for this private placement (see Note 8 of the Financial
Statements —) Gn— Pursuant to a prlvate placement offerlng, on June -1-4-26 2024-2023 , the Company issued 4 and-eertain
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warrants were immediately exercisable and had an exercise term of five years with an exercise price of $ 0. S3 per share.
The combined purchase price for eaeh-one share of Common Stock and one warrant was $ 70 . 56-53 per share . The
prlvate placement was made dlrectly by the Company agfeed-to persons who are not U te—tssue—er—enteﬁrﬁe—a-ny—agreemenf
A darys-a ; paneing-. S The-Company-entered
Gpersons in reliance upon Regulation S of the

Securltles Act of 1933 No underwrlter or Wamwrrght—&—ee—bb&as-e*e{uswe—placement agent {the“Placement-Agent);
aet-as was engaged by the e*e}uswe-Company for thls prlvate placement

Warrant Exelcme@ On December 24 Feet-he—ye&rended%&ne—&@— 2021 t-he—eempaﬂy—tssued-éa—certam of our warrant

holders exercised warrants to purchase 100 , +22-000 shares of Common Stock for total proceeds to the Company of § 82
130 , 000 656-upornr-the-exereise-of warrants- On Deeember24-July 14 , 26242022 , certain of our warrant holders exercised
warrants to purchase +86-1, 250 , 000 shares of Common Stock for total proceeds to the Company of $ 436-1, 625 , 000 (see
Note 8 to the Financial Statements) . Bebt-On February 6, 2020, the Company issued two Convertible Notes (the *
Convertible Notes ) to Paseco APS (the “ Holder ), a Danish limited company and an existing stockholder of the Company
each with a face value amount of $ 600, 000, convertible into shares of Common Stock. The Holder did not exercise the
conversion feature that expired on February 6, 2021. The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes was due and
payable on February 6, 2023. Interest on the Convertible Notes commenced accruing on the date of issuance at six percent (6
%) per annum, computed on the basis of twelve 30- day months, and +s-was compounded monthly on the final day of each
calendar month based upon the principal and all accrued and unpaid interest outstanding as of such compound date. The interest
was payable in cash on a semi- annual basis. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, the interest expense
amounted to $ 72-210 , 875-543 and $ 72, 967875 , respectively. Effective December 30, 2022, Company amended and restated
the Convertible Notes (the “ Amended and Restated Secured Notes ). Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Secured Notes,
the due date was extended to February 28, 2024, and the interest was increased to twelve percent (12 %) per annum, which was
prepaid by the Company in full on the date of amendment through the issuance of 198, 439 shares of the Company’ s Common
Stock based on the closing market price on that date, of $ 1. 03, which included 29, 419 shares for interest accrued through
December 30, 2022, and the obligations of the Company under the Amended and Restated Secured Notes were secured by a
security Agreement (the ©“ Security Agreement ). On June 26, 2023, the holder of the Amended and Restated Secured Notes
notified the Company that they wished to elect to exercise their conversion right triggered by a private placement.
Therefore, the entire balance of $ 1, 200, 000 Amended and Restated Secured Notes were converted into 2, 264, 150
shares of Common Stock and 1, 132, 075 Warrants. There were no Amended and Restated Secured Notes outstanding as
of June 30, 2023 (sce Note 6 to the Financial Statements —) . On March 30, 2020 (the ““ Issuance Date ), the Company issued a
Promissory Note in the principal amount of $ 5, 000, 000 to Paseco ApS ( the—Promissery NeteJto-the “ Holder 7). The
principal amount of the Promissory Note was payable on November 30, 2021, and bore interest at a fixed rate of 6 % per
annum, which was prepaid by the Company in full on the date of issuance through the issuance of 188, 485 shares of the
Company’ s Common Stock based on the closing market price on that date, valued at $ 501, 370. On February 11, 2021, the
Company and the Holder amended the original Promissory Note to extend the maturity date to November 30, 2022. The
Company prepaid in full all accrued interest from November 30, 2021 to the new maturity date November 30, 2022, through the
issuance of 74, 054 shares of Common Stock based on the closing market price on that date, valued at $ 299, 178. On May 17,
2022, the Company entered into a second amendment to the Promissory Note that extended the maturity date out to November
30, 2023 and increased the interest rate from 6 % to 12 % per annum. The Company prepaid six months of interest through May
31, 2023, through issuance of 47, 115 shares of Common Stock based on the closing market price on that date, valued at $ 299,
178. All other terms of the Promissory Note remained the same. Effective December 30, 2022, the Company entered into a third
amendment to the Promissory Note. Pursuant to the third amendment, the Company” s obligations under the Promissory Note
were secured by the Security Agreement. All accrued interest payable from May 30, 2023 to the maturity date was payable
on May 30, 2023 in either cash or shares of our Common Stock. The Holder elected the interest be paid in cash (the “
Interest Payment ”). (see Note 6 to the Financial Statements.) To secure the Company’ s obligations under each of the
Amended and Restated Secured Notes and the Promissory Note, the Company entered into a Security Agreement with the
Holder, pursuant to which the Company granted a lien on all assets of the Company (the “ Collateral ) for the benefit of the
Holder. Upon an Event of Default (as defined in the Amended and Restated Secured Notes and Promissory Note, respectively)
the Holder may, among other things, collect or take possession of the Collateral, proceed with the foreclosure of the security
interest in the Collateral or sell, lease or dispose of the Collateral . On June 12, 2023, the Holder notified the Company that it
wanted to apply the Interest Payment due to it towards the Company’ s next private placement. On June 26, 2023, the
Holder participated in a private placement. As part of the private placement, the Company issued (i) 567, 588 shares of
its Common Stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share and (ii) 283, 794 Common Stock purchase warrants, at a purchase price
of $ 0. 53 per share, for aggregate purchase price of $ 300, 822, equal to the Interest Payment (see Note 6 to the Financial
Statements) . Cash Flows Following is a summary of the Company’ s cash flows provided by (used in) operating, investing,
and financing activities: For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (4511 , 732-774 , 336-549
) $ (26-15 ,6140-732 , 423-336 ) Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (529 ,456-774 ) (48-5 , 892-156 ) Net Cash Provided by
Financing Activities 4, 515, 056 4, 250, 464 32-6684-553-Effect of exchange rates on cash ( 8,395) (5, 240) 26;H+Net
trerease-(Decrease) in Cash $ (7,297, 662) $ (11,492, 268) $H5968;-649-At June 30, 20222023 , we had cash and cash



equivalents of $ 9-1 , $72-874 , +42-480 , a decrease of $ H-7 , 492-297 , 268-662 , when compared to the June 30, 26242022
balance of $ 26-9 , 664-172 , 4+0-142 . This decrease was primarily due to cash used in operating activities, partially offset by
cash provided by financing activities. We plan to use our cash and cash equivalents to fund research and development,
specifically to open an Investigational New Drug Application (IND) following Pre- IND readouts from the FDA (the first step in
the drug review process by the FDA) for ENOGB-- RENB - BEH-DC- 11 , ENOB- RENB - HV- 12, ENOB-- RENB - HV- 01,
ENOB-- RENB - HV- 21 and ENOGB-- RENB - HB- 01. These activities will require an increase in selling, general and
administrative costs, and research and development costs to support the expected growth. As additional funds are required, we
may raise such funds from time to time through public or private sales of our equity or debt securities. Cash used in operating
activities represents the cash receipts and disbursements related to all of our activities other than investing and financing
activities. Operating cash flow is derived by adjusting our net income for non- cash items and changes in operating assets and
liabilities. Net cash used in operating activities for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-was $ 11, 774, 549 and $
15,732,336 aﬂd—$—29—6—1—9—7%3— respectlvely, representmg a decrea%e of $ 43 , 878957 , 387787 . The decrease is primarily
related to the inereasen A d-by-changes in our operating assets and liabilities of $ +
4, 415305, +H3-157 . Net cash u%ed in 1nvest1ng actlvme% for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-262+was $ 29,
774 and $ 5, 156 ¥, respectively, representing and-- an increase of $ 24 (48-, 618 -8929—respeeﬂ’v‘e}y—repfeseﬂ&ng—a—deefease
of$43736- The deerease-increase is primarily due to fesspurchases of equipment in the current year. Net cash provided by
financing activities for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 aﬁd—Z@Q—l—waq $4, 515 056 and $ 4 250 464 , respectively,
representing and-- an increase of $ 32-264 , 592 664,553 respeetively,represen g . The net cash
provided by financing activities in the current year consists prlmarlly of $4, 67-6—011 %99—1-1&—823 of proceedq from the issuance
of Common Stock related-to-equity-tine-draws-through private placements and $ 1, 625, 000 of proceeds from the exercise of
warrants, partially offset by repayments of $ 1, 121, 767 under a finance agreement . The prior year net cash from
ﬁnancmg act1v1t1e§ prlmarlly con%l%ted of $ 264, -843—676 399 in 998—ef—net—proceed§ from the ﬂsaﬂﬂee—e-fGeﬁiﬁierl—Sfeekas

issuance of Common Stock related to equ1ty line draws. Off- Balance Sheet Arrangementi As of June
30, 2023 and 2022 ;and2024-, we had no off- balance sheet arrangements. We are not aware of any material transactions
which are not disclosed in our consolidated financial statements. Significant Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting
Estimates Our management’ s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
U. S. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, and expenses. On an ea—geing-ongoing basis, we evaluate our critical accounting policies and
estimates. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable in
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and
conditions. Our most critical accounting estimates are detailed below, and our significant accounting policies are more fully
described in Note 1 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Intangible Assets- The Company has both definite
and indefinite life intangible assets. Definite life intangible assets relate to patents. The Company accounts for definite life
intangible assets in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ) Accounting Standards Codification (“
ASC ”) Topic 350, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Intangible assets are recorded at cost. Patent costs capitalized consist
of costs incurred to acquire the underlying patent. If it is determined that a patent will not be issued, the related remaining
capitalized patent costs are charged to expense. Definite life intangible assets are amortized on a straight- line basis over their
estimated useful life. The estimated useful life of patents is twenty years from the date of application. Indefinite life intangible
assets include license agreements and goodwill acquired in a business combination. The Company accounts for indefinite life
intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350. License agreement costs represent the fair value of the license agreement on the
date acquired and are tested annually for impairment. Goodwill- Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated for impairment
annually as of June 30 or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment of Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets — We test for goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level,
which is one level below the operating segment level. Our detailed impairment testing involves comparing the fair value of each
reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. Fair value reflects the price a market participant would be willing to pay
in a potential sale of the reporting unit and is based on discounted cash flows or relative market- based approaches. If the
carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we record an impairment loss for such excess. The annual fair value
analysis performed on goodwill supported that goodwill is not impaired as of June 30, 20222023 (see Note 4 to the financial
statements —) . For indefinite- lived intangible assets, such as licenses acquired as an In- Process Research and Development (*
IPR & D ”) asset, on an annual basis we determine the fair value of the asset and record an impairment loss, if any, for the
excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. For the yearyears ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the carrying value
of the licenses acquired as an IPR & D asset exceeded its fair value, due to changes in the projected economic benefits to be
realized from these assets. Therefore, the Company recorded impairment losses of $ 18, 960, 000 and $ 93, 253, 000 during
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 4 to the financial statements). The carrying value of IPR
& D and goodwill at June 30, 2023, were $ 42, 611, 000 and $ 11, 640, 000, respectively. Impairment of Long- Lived
Assets- Long- lived assets, such as property and equipment and definite life intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Circumstances which could trigger a review include, but are not limited to: significant decreases in the
market price of the asset; significant adverse changes in the business climate or legal factors; current period cash flow or
operating losses combined with a history of losses or a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset;



and current expectations that the asset will more likely than not be sold or disposed of significantly before the end of its
estimated useful life. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately
presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value toss-less costs to sell and
would no longer be depreciated. The depreciable basis of $-93;253,-006-assets that are impaired and continue in use are
their respectlve fair values. No 1mpa1rment was recorded durmo the year ended June 30 2622-2023 (see—Nete—4—te—t-he

respeetively-. Fair Value of Fmancml Instruments The Company accounts for fair value measurements for hmncul dssets and
financial liabilities in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement. Under the authoritative guidance, fair
value is defined as the exit price, representing the amount that would either be received to sell an asset or be paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market- based measurement that should be
determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering
such assumptions, the guidance established a three- tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows: @ Level 1. Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; ® Level
2. Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and e Level 3.
Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

There were no asse’fs—t-hﬁt—use—Le\ el 1,2o0r3 tﬂpﬂfs—assets nor any hab&rt—tes—t-h&t—use—Level 1 e-P, 2 or tﬂpﬂts—as—e-f—}uﬂe—l’v@—

s-ig-ﬂi-ﬁeaﬂt-}yhh-igl‘re%eﬂewe%faifv&}u&(see Note 1 fe—t-he—F—rﬂ&ﬁeta-l—S’fa—tefﬁeﬂts— ) Stock Based Compensatlon The Company
has granted stock options, restricted share units (“ RSUs ) and warrants to certain employees, officers, directors, and
consultants. The Company accounts for options in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation —
Stock Compensation. Stock based compensation costs for the vesting of options and RSUs granted to certain employees,
officers, directors, and consultants for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024+-were $ 3,535,051 and $ 5, 490, 602
and-$1;444,798-, respectively (see Note 8 to the Financial Statements). The Company recognizes compensation costs for stock
option awards to employees, officers and directors based on their grant- date fair value. The value of each stock option is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model. The weighted- average assumptions used to
estimate the fair value of the stock options granted using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model are the expected term of the
award, the underlying stock price volatility, the risk- free interest rate, and the expected dividend yield . The Company
accounts for forfeitures as they occur . The Company records stock- based compensation for services received from non-
employees in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation Non- Employees. All transactions in which
goods or services are the consideration received for the issuance of equity instruments are accounted for based on the fair value
of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable. Equity
instruments issued to consultants and the cost of the services received as consideration are measured and recognized based on
the fair value of the equity instruments issued and are recognized over the consultants’ required service period, which is
generally the vesting period (see Note 8 to the Financial Statements.) The Company does not have sufficient historical
information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and post- vesting employment termination
behavior. Accordingly, the Company has elected to use the “ simplified method ” to estimate the expected term of its
share- based awards. The simplified method computes the expected term as the sum of the award’ s vesting term plus the
original contractual term divided by two. Recently Enacted Accounting Standards For a description of recent accounting
standards, including the expected dates of adoption and estimated effects, if any, on our consolidated financial statements, see “
Note 1: Recent Accounting Pronouncements ” in the financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Item 7A.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk The Registrant-Company is a smaller reporting company and is not
required to provide this information. Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ENOECHIAN-RENOVARO
BIOSCIENCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Index to Consolidated Financial Statements Page-Repert-PageReport of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID: 3627) F- 2 Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2023 and
2022 and-F- 4 Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended June 30, 26242023 and 2022 F- 5 Consolidated
Statements of Operations-Comprehensive Loss for the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-F- 6 Consolidated Statement
of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended June 30, 2624-2023 and 2022 F- 7 Consolidated Statements of Cemprehenstve
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and202+F—+6-Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F- 9F- 1 12RERORTF--- REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Enoehian-Renovaro
Biosciences, Inc.: Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
EneehtanrRenovaro Biosciences, Inc. (“ the Company ) as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two- year period
ended June 30, 20222023 and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ financial statements ™). In our opinion, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of June 30,
2023 and 2022 and262+, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two- year period ended
June 30, 2622-2023 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Explanatory
Paragraph Regarding Going Concern The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company
will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Nete-Notes 1 and 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered
incurred substantial recurring losses from operations and has a net capital deficiency that-which raise-raises substantial doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management' s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Nete-Notes
1 and 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Basis
for Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ) and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters The critical audit matters communicated below
are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) related to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements
and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgements. The communication of critical audit matters
does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the
critical matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they
relate. Indefinite- Lived Intangible Asset Impairment Assessment Critical Audit Matter Description The Company has an
indefinite- lived intangible asset related to an acquired license treated as an in- process research and development asset (“ IPR &
D 7). As of June 30, 2022-2023 , the carrying value of the asset is $ 42, 64611 57, 000 ;-post an impairment charge of $ 93
18 , 253-960 , 000 taken during the year. To assess the carrying value of the IPR & D asset for impairment, management
estimated the fair value of IPR & D on its elected assessment date of June 30, 2622-2023 , using a multi- period excess earnings
method, which is a specific discounted cash flow method. The determination of the fair value requires management to make
significant estimates including, but not limited to, the discount rate used in the model, the total addressable market for each
potential drug, market penetration assumptions, and for the estimated timing of commercialization of the drugs. Changes in
these assumptions could have a significant impact on the fair value of the IPR & D. How the Critical Audit Matter was
Addressed in the Audit We identified the impairment testing of the IPR & D asset as a critical audit matter because of the
significant estimates and assumptions management makes related to determining the fair value of the IPR & D asset. This
required a high degree of auditor judgment and an 1ncreased extent of effort When performrng audrt procedures to evaluate such
significant estimates and assumptions. ¥ R-the- : ; 0 0 v eetatized-skil-an
knowtedge-Our audit procedures related to the follow1ng e Tested and evaluated the methods, data and srgn1f1cant assumptions
used in developing the IPR & D fair value. ® Evaluating the reasonableness and consistency of the selected valuation
methodology and assumptions utilized by the Company including the Company’ s intent and ability to carry out a particular
course of action. e Identified significant assumptions used by the Company and evaluated each assumption used to develop the
estimate, both individually and in combination with other significant assumptrons ° Test1ng the completeness and accuracy of
underlying data used in the fair Value estlmate alte z : y Re g

knowledge were ut1hzed by the Firm to assist in the performance of these procedures Goodwill Impairment Assessment As of
June 30, 20222023 , the carrying value of goodwill was $ 11, 640, 000. As described in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company tests goodwill for impairment annually at the reporting unit level, or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than it’ s carrying amount. To
assess the carrying value of the goodwill for impairment, management estimated the fair value of goodwill on its elected
assessment date of June 30, 2022-2023 , using a discounted cash flow model. The determination of the fair value requires
management to make significant estimates and assumptions. We identified the evaluation of the impairment analysis for



goodwill as a critical audit matter because of the significant estimates and assumptions management makes in determining the
fair value of the goodwill. This required a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort when performing
audit procedure@ to evaluate the rea%ombleneqs of such estimates and assumptions. Jr-additten;-the-andit-effort-invelved-theuse

e Tested and evaluated the methods, data and significant

assumptions u%ed in developlng the falr value ot goodwﬂl e Evaluating the reasonableness and consistency of the selected
valuation methodology and assumptions utilized by the Company including the Company’ s intent and ability to carry out a
particular course of action. @ Identified significant assumptions used by the Company and evaluated each assumption used to
develop the estimate, both individually and in combination with other significant assumptions. ® Testing the completeness and
accuracy of underlymg data used in the falr value estlmate In addltlon, professmnals w1th speclahzed sklll O—E'v‘a-}u&ted-t-he

Beve{eped-&ﬂ—and m&epeﬂdeﬂt—eaqaeet&ﬁeﬂ—fer—eemp&ﬂseﬁ—knowledge were utlhzed by the F1rm to ass1st in the performance
of t-he—these procedures i

i da e --: e-./s/ Sadler Glbb & A@iomate@ LLC
We have qewed as the Company S audltor since 2018 Draper UT October 1, 2023 F-4-3 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEETS June 30, ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS: Cash $ 1,874,480 $ 9, 172, 142 $20,664;,410-Prepaids and other assets
690, 925 392, 996 234;-583-Total Current Assets 2, 565, 405 9, 565, 138 208;-898;-993-Property and equipment, net 508, 989
586, 536 H9;364-OTHER ASSETS Definite life intangible assets, net 39, 676 44, 268 65;-986-Indefinite life intangible assets,
net 42, 611, 000 61, 571 57806454824~ 000 Goodwill 11, 640, 000 11, 640, 000 Deposits and other assets 21, 741 68, 635 265
9-84—Operat1ng lease rights- of- use assets 913, 985 1, 157, 086 -1—435—9—7’-8—T0tal Other A@%et% 55 226 402 74, 480, 989 -1-67—

5 3 - A : 6 LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts payable — trade $ 5,296,823 8% 1. 401, 867 -$—3%9%§9—Accrued expenses 723,173 1, 031,
462 H5482;-323-Other current liabilities 184, 733 220, 685 99—692—C0nt1ngent consideration liability — 2, 343, 318 —
Convertible notes payable — 1, 200, 000 —Current portion of operating lease liabilities 193, 422 253, 636 292-Notes payable ,
499—net 4, 624 947 — Total Current Llablhtle@ 11, 023 098 6,450, 968 5-885;893-NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES:

get A G b 6 S otes-payable Notes payable, net — 4, 577, 148 4;
5—7’-9—1—1-4—Operat1ng le"lie habllmeq net of current portron 775 587 985 699 -1%—39—3—34—T0tal Non- Current Liabilities 775, 587
5,562, 847 43:856;-393-Total Liabilities 11, 798, 685 12, 013, 815 +4;942;286-STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY +Preferred
stock, $ 0. 0001 par value; 10, 000, 000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding — — Common stock, par value $ 0.
0001, 100, 000, 000 shares authorized, 53-63 , 897-698 , 882-144 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2022-2023 ; 52-53 |
249007 , 661+-082 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 20242022 6, 371 5, 302 5;222-Additional paid- in capital 290, 554,
875 276, 989, 179 265:-580;356-Accumulated deficit ( 204-244 | 345-029 , 197253 ) ( 96-204 , 944-345 . 865-197 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (36-29 , 436-882 ) (40-30 , 834-436 ) Total Stockholders” Equity 46, 502, 111
72,618, 848 3745:662,939-TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’” EQUITY $ 58,300, 796 $ 84, 632, 663 $489;
605;225F-—6-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS For the Years Ended June 30, 2622-Operating Expenses General and administrative $ 15,
318,198 § 14, 329, 801 $F-557990-Research and development 4, 165, 197 8, 372, 800 +5:-720;262-Indefinite life intangible
assets impairment charge 18, 960, 000 93, 253, 000 —Depreciation and amortization 113, 496 123, 590 423;-535-Total
Operating Expenses 38, 556, 891 116, 079, 191 23;464-+8F+LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (+H6-38 , 679-556 , +9+-891 ) ( 23
116 , 46+079 , 787191 ) Other Income (Expenses) Loss on extinguishment of contingent consideration liability (419, 182)
— Change in fair value of contingent consideration — 2, 896, 627 3;-648;-633)-Interest expense ( 372-580 , 844-344 ) ( 379-372
,608-844 ) Gain (loss) on foreign currency transactions 9~ 32-1 , 634-019 ) Interest income and other income (expense) (126,
620) 122, 041 435479-Total Other Income (Expenses) (1, 127, 165) 2, 645, 833 3:447%-696)-Loss Before Income Taxes (+H3
39 ,433-684 ,358-056 ) (26-113 , 848433 , 883-358 ) Income Tax (Expense) Benefit — (34) 425:276-NET LOSS § (H3;433;
392-- 39, 684, 056 ) $ (26-113 , 723-433 , 667392 ) BASIC AND DILUTED NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE § (2-0 . +6
71)$ (02 .5%16 ) WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDING- BASIC
AND DILUTED 56, 265, 362 52, 528, 024 453167,262RENOVARO BIOSCIENCES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS For the Years Ended June 30, Net Loss $ (H3;433;392—
39,684, 056 ) S (26-113 , 723-433 , 607392 ) Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Foreign currency translation, net of taxes
(19, 602) 36;582-0ther-Comprehensive Loss § (H3-39 , 452-683 , 994-502 ) $ ( 26-113 , 693452 , 625994 )
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY For the Years Ended June 30, 2022-2023 and June 30,
2024-2022 # of Shares Common Stock Additional Paid- In Capital Accumulated Deficit Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total Balance June 30, 2626-2021 46-52 , 49-7—219 499—661 $ 4—5 659—222 $ 2—39—265 49-7—580 225-356 5 (64
90, -1-8-8—911 -1-9-8—805 ) $ (4-1—10 4-1-6-834 ) $ 66 tan M are 0

(—1—9—8—34)—174 662 939 Stock issued puriuant to W"lrrantq exercmed IOO OOO -1-9—129 990 — — 130 OOO Contmoent shares



issued pursuant to acquisition agreement 100, 000 +8-797, 990 — — 798, 000 Shares issued for #Hew-efinterest on $ 5 million

676,349 — —4, 676, 399 Shares issued for fully vested RSUs 6, 26649, 810 — — 9, 811 Shares issued pursuant to options

252, 350 Stock- based compensation — — 5, 238, 252 — — 5, 238, 252 Net loss — — — (113, 433, 392) — (113, 433, 392)
Foreign currency translation loss — — —— (19, 602) (19, 602) Balance June 30, 2022 53, 007, 082 5, 302 276, 989, 179 (204,
345, 197) (30, 436) 72, 618, 848 Stock issued pursuant to warrants exercised 1, 250, 000 1, 624, 875 — — 1, 625, 000 Earn-
out shares issued 1, 250, 000 2, 762, 375 — — 2, 762, 500 Shares issued for interest on $ 5-1. 2 million notes payable
extension 198 , 439 204, 372 — — 204, 392 Issuance of common stock and warrants under private placement offering 4,
832,452 4,011,339 — —4, 011, 822 Restricted shares issued for services rendered 200, 000 227, 980 — — 228, 000
Conversion of convertible promissory notes 2, 264, 150 1, 199, 774 — — 1, 200, 000 Issuance of restricted commitment
shares 696, 021 (70) — — — Stock- based compensation — — 3, 535, 051 — — 3, 535, 051 Net loss — — — (39, 684,
056) — (39, 684, 056) Foreign currency translation gain — — — — Balance June 362-- 30, 2023 63, 698, 144 $ 276-6 , 989
371 $ 290 ,+79-554, 875 § (264-244 . 345-029 , 197253 ) $ (36-29 , 436-882 ) $ 7246 , 638502 , 848-111 The accompanying
notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS For
the Years Ended June 30, 2022-CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Net loss $ ( H3;433;392— 39, 684, 056 )
$ (26-113 , 723-433 , 667392 ) ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET LOSS TO NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES: Depreciation and amortization 113, 496 123, 590 423;-534-Change in fair value of contingent consideration —
(2, 896, 627) 3-Loss on extinguishment of contingent consideration liability 419 , 182 — 648;-633-Non- cash stock- based
compensation expense 3, 535, 051 5, 490, 602 +Non- cash restricted shares issued for services rendered 228 ., 000 — 444;
#9&-Indefinite life intangible assets impairment charge 18, 960, 000 93, 253, 000 —Amortization of discount on note payable
348, 621 297, 212 296;-565-Loss on disposal of fixed assets — 18, 168 —Changes in assets and liabilities: Other receivables 1,
594 342-Prepaid expenses / deposits 1, 070, 249 461, 310 #33;:739-Accounts payable 3, 894, 955 1, 081, 308 272;348)-Other
current liabilities (54, 060) 24, 056 30;-804-Operating leases, net (+3-27 , 546224 ) (3-13 , 440-516 ) Accrued expenses ( 578,
809) (139, 641) HE68FNET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (4511 , 732774 , 336-549 ) (26-15 , 6+6-732 ,
723-336 ) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: Purchase of property and equipment ( 529 , +56-774 ) (485,
892-156 ) NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (529 ,456-774 ) (485 ,892-156 ) CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Repayments of finance agreement ( 566-1 , 848-121, 767 ) ( 546-560 , 651848 ) Proceeds from
exercise of warrants 1, 625, 000 130, 000 2;-856-Proceeds from exercise of OptIOIN —4,913 —Proceed% from %92—1—2023
private plaeement-placements 4, 011, 823 — d e S e €
Proceeds from LPC equity agreement — 4, 676, 399 -I%%I—3§9—NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 4
515, 056 4, 250, 464 325-664-553-Effect of exchange rates on cash ( 8,395) (5, 240) 26; H+NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH (7,297,662) (11,492, 268) H;968;-649-CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 9, 172, 142 20, 664, 410 8;-696;36+
CASH, END OF PERIOD $ 1, 874,480 $ 9, 172, 142 $26,664;41+0-CONSOHDATED-STATEMENTS-OF-CASHFLEOWS
CONTINUEBY-SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION Cash Paid during the year for:
Interest $ 352,334 $ 79, 716 $-89;224-Income Taxes $ 34— $ 3F-SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON- CASH
INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES Contingent Shares issued pursuant to Acquisition Agreement $ 2, 762, 500 $
798, 000 $492,-522-Shares issued for #diew-ofinterest expense-on nete-notes payable $ (204,392 § 299, 178 ¥$298,178)
Finance agreement entered into in exchange for prepaid assets $ 666-1, 139 , 875 $ 687-666 , 250F-—11-875 Issuance of stock
in lieu of repayment of $ 1. 2 million note payable $ 1, 200, 000 $ — Establishment of debt discount for interest payable of
$ 5M note $ 300, 822 $ — NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTE 1 —
ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Business — In August 2023, the
Company changed its corporate name from Enochian BieSetenees-Biosciences Inc. to Renovaro Biosciences Inc., (“
Renovaro Eneehian-or~“Registrant-", and together with its subsidiaries, the “ Company ”, “ we ” or “ us ”) engages in the
research and development of pharmaceutical and biological products for the treatment of HIV HBYV, and cancer with the intent
to manufacture said products. Going Concern- These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
assumes that the Company will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Company has not generated any revenue, has incurred substantial recurring losses from continuing operations and has an
accumulated deficit of § 204-244 | 345-029 , 497253 as of June 30, 2022-2023 . The continuation of the Company as a going
concern is dependent upon (i) its ability to successfully obtain FDA approval of its product candidates, (ii) its ability to obtain
any necessary debt and / or equity financing, and (iii) its ability to generate profits from the Company’ s future operations. These
factors raise substantial doubt regarding the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern for a year from the issuance of
these financial statements . These financial statements do not include any adjustments to the recoverability and classification of
recorded asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a
going concern. Basis of Presentation- The Company prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“ U. S. GAAP ”) and follows the rules and regulations of the U.

S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ). Principles of Consolidation — For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022
and202+-, the consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of Renovaro the-Registrant-, and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All material inter- company transactions and accounts have been eliminated in the consolidation.




eonsiderationtiabilityand-the-fairva aity-tnstramentsissted—Subsidiaries- Renovaro Biopharma Inc. (“ Renovaro
Biopharma ”), formerly Enochlan Blopharma Inc , “EneehtanBtopharma->-was incorporated on May 19, 2017 in Delaware
and is a 100 % owned subsidiary of Renovaro the-Registrant- Enoehtan-Renovaro Biopharma owns a perpetual, fully paid- up,
royalty- free, sublicensable, and sole and exclusive worldwide license to research, develop, use, sell, have sold, make, have
made, offer for sale, import and otherwise commercialize certain intellectual property in cellular therapies for the prevention,
treatment, amelioration of and / or therapy exclusively for HIV in humans, and research and development exclusively relating to
HIV in humans. As of June 30, 2622-2023 and June 30, 26242022 . zero and |, 250 +060-and35356-, 000 shares of Common
Stock, respectively, remain contingently issuable in connection with the acquisition of Eneehtan-Renovaro BioPharma
Biopharma in February 2018 (the *“ Contingent Shares ”’). Renovaro Biosciences Denmark ApS (“ Renovaro Denmark ),
formerly Enochian Biosciences Denmark ApS ;a Danish corporation was incorporated on April 1, 2001 ¢~EneehtanDenmark
- On February 12, 2014, in accordance with the terms and conditions of a Share Exchange Agreement, the Company acquired
Eneehtanr-Renovaro Denmark and it became a 100 % owned subsidiary of Renovaro the-Registrant-subject to 185, 053 shares
of eemmenrCommon stoek-Stock of Renovaro theRegistrant-held in escrow according to Danish law (the © Escrow Shares 7).
As of June 30, 2622-2023 , there are 17, 414 Escrow Shares remalnlng (see Note 8) G@XH—B—Use of Accountlng Estlmates -1-9
Bpdate-The preparation of financial statements v v v ;
ourteseareh-aetivities—Fo-conformity with generally accepted accountmg pr1nc1ples requlres management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and llabllltles, the dlsclosures of contlngent assets
and liabilities at the datc -th G S S

irthe-eonduet-of the financial statements e*pernnents—&ue—te—l—rmrt&&ens—m—reseurees—and sﬂpplryheham—tssues—m—pameu-laﬁfer

the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reportmg perlod Actual results could dlffer from those

estlmated t-h-rrd—paﬁfes-eeﬂdﬁetmg—eaqaemﬁeﬁts— h

fesuwl-t—m—s'rgmﬁeaﬁt—&gnlﬁcant estlmates 1nclude the fair value and pre}enged-disr&pﬁeﬁ—potentlal 1mpa1rment of 1ntang1ble
assets globat-finaneial-markets-, reduetng-our-the fair value of the contmgent cons1derat10n abrl-rty—llablllty te—aeeess—e&pﬁal—

and whieh-eould-in-the fair value of equity instruments issued y v
Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Translation- The functional Culrency of -E-neeh-lan—Renovaro Denmark 1S the D"lmsh
Kroner (“ DKK ”). Enoehtan-Renovaro Denmark’ s reporting currency is the U. S. Dollar for the purpose of these financial
statements. Eneehtan-Renovaro Denmark’ s consolidated balance sheet accounts are translated into U. S. dollars at the period-
end exchange rates and all revenue and expenses are translated into U. S. dollars at the average exchange rates prevailing during
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 ard-26824-. Translation gains and losses are deferred and accumulated as a component
of other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate
fluctuations from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are included in the statement of
operations as incurred. Cash and Cash Equivalents- The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company’ s cash balances at June 30, 2023, and 2022 ;and2024-,
are $ 1,874,480 and $ 9, 172, 142 and-$20;6644+0-, respectively. The Company had balances held in financial institutions in
Denmark and in the United States in excess of federally insured amounts at June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2624-0f $ 1, 526, 990,
and $ 8, 805, 495 ;and-$20,287, 212 respectively. Property and Equipment- Property and equipment are stated at cost.
Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized and
depreciated upon being placed in service. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.
Depreciation is computed for financial statement purposes on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
which range from four to ten years (see Note 3). Definite life intangible assets relate to patents. The Company accounts for
definite life intangible assets in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ ASC ) Topic 350, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Intangible assets are recorded at
cost. Patent costs capitalized consist of costs incurred to acquire the underlying patent. If it is determined that a patent
will not be issued, the related remaining capitalized patent costs are charged to expense. Definite life intangible assets are
amortized on a straight- line basis over their estimated useful life. The estimated useful life of patents is twenty years
from the date of application. [ndefinite life intangible assets include license agreements and goodwill acquired in a business
combination. The Company accounts for indefinite life intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350. License agreement costs
represent the fair value of the license agreement on the date acquired and are tested annually for impairment on June 30 or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the fair value of the license is less than the carrying amount. F- 43-10
NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) Goodwill- Goodwill is not amortized but
is evaluated for impairment annually as of June 30 or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
of the reporting unit may be less than the fair value of the reporting unit. Impairment of Goodwill and Indefinite Lived
Intangible Assets — We test for goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level, which is one level below the operating segment
level. Our detailed impairment testing involves comparing the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value, including
goodwill. Fair value reflects the price a market participant would be willing to pay in a potential sale of the reporting unit and is
based on discounted cash flows or relative market- based approaches. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair
value, we record an impairment loss for such excess. The annual fair value analysis performed on goodwill supported that




goodwill is not impaired as of June 30, 2022-2023 (see Note 4.) For indefinite- lived intangible assets, such as licenses acquired
as an In- Process Research and Development (“ [PR & D ») asset, on an annual basis we determine the fair value of the asset
and record an impairment loss, if any, for the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. For the year ended
June 30, 2022-2023 , the carrying value of the licenses acquired as an IPR & D asset exceeded its fair value. Therefore, the
Company recorded an impairment loss of $ 93-18 , 253-960 , 000 during the year ended June 30, 26222023 (see Note 4.) The
carrying value of IPR & D and goodwill at June 30, 2023, were $ 42, 611, 000 and $ 11, 640, 000, respectively. Impairment
of Long- Lived Assets- Long- lived assets, such as property and equipment and definite life intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Circumstances which could trigger a review include, but are not limited to: significant decreases in the market price of the asset;
significant adverse changes in the business climate or legal factors; current period cash flow or operating losses combined with a
history of losses or a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset; and current expectations that the asset
will more likely than not be sold or disposed of significantly before the end of its estimated useful life. Recoverability of assets
to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows,
an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell and would no longer be depreciated. The depreciable basis of assets that are impaired and continue in
use are their respective fair values . No impairment was recorded during the year ended June 30, 2023 . Lecases- In
accordance with ASC Topic 842, the Company determined the initial classification and measurement of its right- of- use assets
and lease liabilities at the lease commencement date and thereafter. The lease terms include any renewal options and termination
options that the Company is reasonably assured to exercise, if applicable. The present value of lease payments is determined by
using the implicit interest rate in the lease, if that rate is readily determinable; otherwise, the Company develops an incremental
borrowing rate based on the information available at the commencement date in determining the present value of the future
payments. Effective June 25, 2022, the Company entered into a sub- lease agreement (see Note 5.) Pursuant to ASC 842, the
Company treats the sublease as a separate lease, as the Company was not relieved of the primary obligation under the original
lease. The Company eentifttes-continued to account for the Century City Medical Plaza lease as a lessee and in the same
manner as prior to the commencement date of the sublease. The Company aeeetnts-accounted for the sublease as a lessor of the
lease. The sublease ts-was classified as an operating lease, as it dees-did not meet the criteria of a sales- type or direct financing
lease. On April 18, 2023, the Company entered into a sublease termination agreement with One Health Labs (the
Subtenant ), whereby the Subtenant and the Company agreed to terminate the sublease effective as of April 30, 2023.
The Subtenant agreed to pay the Company $ 139, 460 along with the security deposit of $ 35, 540 for a total termination
fee of $ 175, 000, to permit early termination of the sublease. F- +4-11 Rent expense for operating leases is recognized on a
straight- line basis, unless the operating lease right- of- use assets have been impaired, over the reasonably assured lease term
based on the total lease payments and is included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of
operations. For operating leases that reflect impairment, the Company will recognize the amortization of the operating lease
right- of- use assets on a straight- line basis over the remaining lease term with rent expense still included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. The Company has elected the practical expedient to not
separate lease and non- lease components. The Company”’ s non- lease components are primarily related to property
maintenance, insurance and taxes, which vary based on future outcomes, and thus are recognized in general and administrative
expenses when incurred (see Note 5.) Research and Development Expenses- The Company expenses research and development
costs incurred in formulating, improving, validating, and creating alternative or modified processes related to and expanding the
use of the HIV, HBV, and Oncology therapies and technologies for use in the prevention, treatment, amelioration of and / or
therapy for HIV, HBV, and Oncology. Research and development expenses for the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and
2024-amounted to $ 4, 165,197 and $ 8, 372, 800 and-$35;-720;262-, respectively. Income Taxes- The Company accounts for
income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740 Accounting for Income Taxes, which requires an asset and liability
approach for accounting for income taxes (see Note 7.) Loss Per Share- The Company calculates earnings (loss) per share in
accordance with FASB ASC 260 Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per common share (EPS) are based on the weighted
average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per common share are based on
shares outstanding (computed as for basic EPS) and potentially dilutive common shares. Potential shares of Common Stock
included in the diluted earnings per share calculation include in- the- money stock options that have been granted but have not
been exercised. The shares of Common Stock outstanding at June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-were 63, 698, 144 and 53, 007,
082 and-52;249;-661-, respectively. Because of the net loss for each of the years ended June 30, 2622-2023 and June 30, 2624+
2022 , dilutive shares for both periods were excluded from the diluted EPS calculation, as the effect of these potential shares of
Common Stock is anti- dilutive. The Company had 7, 949, 513 and 6, 807, 820 and-4;:-0H5-653-potential shares of Common
Stock excluded from the diluted EPS calculation for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively. Fair
Vatue-of FinanetaHnstruments—The-Company-aceounts-® Level 1. Observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities; ® Level 2. Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are
observable either directly or indirectly; and e Level 3. Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data
which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions. There were no Level 1,2, or 3 assets, nor any Level 1,
2,0r3 llabllltles measured at falr Value ona recurrlng basis meas S
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including cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and notes payable , approximate
their recorded values due to their short- term nature. The following table sets forth the liabilities at June 30, 2023 and 2022 and
202+, which are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value on a recurring basis by level of input within the fair value hierarchy.
As required, these are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement: Summary of
significant to the fair value measurement Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using Quoted Prices in Active Markets
for Identical Assets Inputs Significant Other Observable Inputs Significant Other Unobservable Inputs (Level 1) (Level 2)
(Level 3) Contingent Consideration Liability at June 30, 26222023 § — $§ — § — 2,343;348-The roll forward of the
contingent consideration liability is as follows: Balance June 30, 2022 — — 2, 343, 318 Contingent Shares issued pursuant to
the Acquisition Agreement (2, 762, S00) Loss on extinguishment of contingent Consideration — — 419, 182 Balance June
30, 2023 $ — $ — $ — Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical
Assets Inputs Significant Other Observable Inputs Significant Other Unobservable Inputs (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Contingent Consideration Liability at June 30,2022 $ —$ — $ 2, 343, 318 The roll forward of the contingent
consideration liability is as follows: Balance June 30, 2021 — — 6, 037, 945 Contingent Shares issued pursuant to the
Acquisition Agreement (798, 000) Fair value adjustment — — (2 896, 627) Balance June 30,2022 § — b —3$2, 343 318
Stock Optiens-and-Warrants— Based Compensation- The During P d
finanetal-statements;the-Company has granted stock options , restrlcted share units (“ RSUs ”) and war rants to certain
employees, officers, directors, and consultants . The Company accounts for options ane-warrants-in accordance with the
provisions of FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation. Stock —based compensation costs retated-for the
vesting of options and RSUs granted to certain employee-employees eompensation, officers, directors, and eensulting
consultants fees-for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-20624-were $ 3, 535, 051 and $ 5, 490, 602 and-$35-444,798-,
respectively {see-Nete-8)>-. The Company recognizes compensation costs for Steelstock option awards to employees,
officers and directors based on their grant - Based-Compensation—date fair value. The value of each stock option is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model. The weighted- average assumptions used
to estimate the fair value of the stock options granted using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model are the expected
term of the award, the underlying stock price volatility, the risk- free interest rate, and the expected dividend yield. The
Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur. The Company records stock- based compensation for services received from
non- employees in accordance with ASC 718 , Compensation — Stock Compensation Non- Employees . All transactions in
which goods or services are the consideration received for the issuance of equity instruments are meastred-accounted for based
on the grant—date-fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is
more reliably measurable . Equity instruments issued to consultants fer-geeds-erserviees-and the cost of the services received
as consideration are measured and recognized based on the fair value of the equity instruments issued and are recognized over
the consultants’ required service period, which is generally the vesting period. New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet
Adopted- Recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB that have not yet been adopted by the Company are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’ s present or future consolidated financial statements. F- +6-12 NOTE 2 —
GOING CONCERN The Company’ s consolidated financial statements are prepared using the generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal
course of business. However, the Company has incurred substantial recurring losses from continuing operations, has used cash
in the Company’ s continuing operations, and is dependent on additional financing to fund operations. We-The Company
incurred a net loss of appreximately-$ 39, 684, 056 and $ 113, 433, 392 and-$26;723;-607-for the years ended June 30, 2023
and 2022 and-202+, respectively . As of June 30, 2022-2023 , the Company had cash and cash equivalents of § 9-1 , +72-874 ,
+42-480 and an accumulated deficit of $ 204-244 |, 345-029 , 253 4198204345497 These conditions raise substantial doubt
about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are issued. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded
asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue in existence.
Management intends to raise additional funds for (a) research and development, (b) increases in personnel, and (c) the purchase
of equipment, specifically to advance the Company’ s potential products through the regulatory process. We-The Company
may raise such funds from time to time through public or private sales of enr-equity or debt securities. Such financing may not




be available on acceptable terms, or at all, and eur-the failure to raise capital when needed could materially adversely affect eur
the Company’ s growth plans , and-eur-financial condition and results of operations. NOTE 3- PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022 and262+ Summary-Schedule of
property and equipment Useful Life June 30, 2622-2023 June 30, 26242022 Lab equipment and instruments 4- 7 $ 576, 298 $
546, 524 $-583;42+1 easehold improvements 8-224, 629 224, 629 Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 4- 7 172, 861 +H-172 ,
975-861 Total 973, 788 944, 014 986;-625-_ess accumulated depreciation ( 357464 , 478-799 ) ( 266-357 , 66+478 ) Net
Property and Equipment $ 508, 989 $ 586, 536 $F9,364-Depreciation expense amounted to $ 107,321 and $ 108, 595 and-$
-1-97—647—f0r the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 a-nd—292—1— respectlvely—’Phe-Geﬁapm#d-maesed-e-ﬁpfepeﬁ}%d
equipmen b § A S 68-. F-+713 NOTE 4 —
INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL At June 30 2023 and 2022 aﬂd—292—l— deﬂnrte life intangible assets, net of
accumulated amortization, consisted of patents on the Company’ s products and processes of $ 39, 676 and $ 44, 268 and-$-65;
966-, respectively. The patents are recorded at cost and amortized over twenty years from the date of application. Amortization
expense for the year-years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-was $ 6, 175 and $ 14, 995 and-$145;888-, respectively. At
June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-2621-, indefinite life intangible assets consisted of a license agreement classified as In- Process
Research and Development (“ IPR & D ”) intangible assets, which are not amortizable until the intangible assets provide
economic benefit, and goodwill. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-262+, definite- life and indefinite- life intangible assets
consisted of the following: Schedule of Hife-intangible assets Useful Life June 30, 2624-2022 Period Change Effect of Currency
Translation June 30, 2622-2023 Definite Life Intangible Assets Patents 28-Years $ 3+6-279 , H5-257 § — 11 36-, 679 858)-5
279-290 , 257936 Less Accumulated Amortization ( 256-234 , 269-989 ) (44-6 , 995-175 ) 36; 245+ 234-10 , 989-096) (251, 260
) Net Definite- Life Intangible Assets $ 65-44 , 268 906-$-(14;-995)-5 (6, 643-175 ) $ 44-1 , 268-583 $ 39, 676 [ndefinite Life
Intangible Assets License Agreement $ 454-61 , 824-571 , 000 $ (93-18 , 253-960 , 000) $ — $ 42, 63+-611 ;-5H-, 000 Goodwill
11, 640,000 — — 11, 640, 000 Total Indefinite Life Intangible Assets $ +66-73 , 464-211 , 000 $ (93-18 ,253-960 , 000) $ — $
354 , 244251 , 000 Expected future amortization expense is as follows: Schedule of expected future amortization expense
Years ended June 30, 2024 $ H-9 , 86711919 2025 9 , 6671919 2026 9 , 6671919 2027 9 , 667919 Total § 44-39 , 268
676 F- 18-14 During February 2018, the Company acquired a License Agreement (as licensee) to the HIV therapy being
developed as ENOB-- RENB - HV- 01 which consists of a perpetual, fully paid- up, royalty- free, sub- licensable, and sole and
exclusive worldwide license to research, develop, use, sell, have sold, make, have made, offer for sale, import and otherwise
commercialize certain intellectual property in cellular therapies for the prevention, treatment, amelioration of and / or therapy
exclusively for HIV in humans, and research and development exclusively relating to HIV in humans. Because the HIV License
Agreement is considered an IPR & D intangible asset, it is classified as an indefinite life asset that is tested annually for
impairment. Impairment — Following the fourth quarter of each year, management performs its annual test of impairment of
intangible assets by performing a quantitative assessment and determines if it is more likely than not that the fair value of the
asset is greater than or equal to the carrying value of the asset. Fhe-As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the results of the quantitative
assessment indicated that the carrying value of the licenses acquired as an IPR & D asset exceeded its fair value, due to the
changes in the projected economic beneﬁts to be reallzed from subheeﬁsmg—e-PENeB—PHl—G{—wﬂﬂeh-reqt&fed-a—diffefenf
valuattonrapproach-and-the-these assets signifiea natket-eapitatization-valae-. Therefore, an impairment
adjustment of $ 18, 960, 000 and $ 93, 253, 000 was recorded as—ef—for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 , respectively
.NOTE 5 — LEASES Operating Leases — On November 13, 2017, Renovaro theRegistrant-cntered into a lease agreement
for a term of five years and two months from November 1, 2017 with Plaza Medical Office Building, LLC, pursuant to which
Renovaro theRegistrant-agreed to lease approximately 2, 325 rentable square feet (the *“ Plaza Lease ). The base rent for the
Plaza Lease increased by 3 % each year, and ranged from approximately $ 8, 719 per month, for the first year to $ 10, 107 per
month for the two months of the sixth year. The lease was terminated early without penalties or additional costs as of September
30,2022, that released an accrual of $ 70, 800 related to leasehold improvements that was not utilized . On June 19, 2018,
Renovaro the-Registrant-entered into a lease agreement for a term of ten years from September 1, 2018 with Century City
Medical Plaza Land Co., Inc., pursuant to which the Company agreed to lease approximately 2, 453 rentable square feet. On
February 20, 2019, the Registrant entered into an Addendum to the original lease agreement with an effective date of December
1, 2019, where it expanded the leased area to include another 1, 101 square feet for a total rentable 3, 554 square feet. The base
rent increases by 3 % each year, and ranges from $ 17, 770 per month as of the date of the amendment to $ 23, 186 per month
for the tenth year. The equalized monthly lease payment for the term of the lease is $ 20, 050. The Company subleased the
space as of June 25, 2022 through April 30, 2023 (see subsection below “ Sublease Agreement ” for details.) The Company
identified and assessed the following significant assumptions in recognizing the right- of- use assets and corresponding
liabilities: Expected lease term — The expected lease term includes both contractual lease periods and, when applicable,
cancelable option periods when it is reasonably certain that the Company would exercise such options. The Company’ s feases—
lease have-has a remaining lease terms— term of 50 between-6-months-and-62-months. As of June 30, 2622-2023 , the weighted-
average remaining term is 4. 95-17 years. Incremental borrowing rate — The Company’ s leasc agreentents— agreement do
does not provide an implicit rate. As the Company does not have any external borrowings for comparable terms of its feases—
lease , the Company estimated the incremental borrowing rate based on the U. S. Treasury Yield Curve rate that corresponds to
the length of each lease. This rate is an estimate of what the Company would have to pay if borrowing on a collateralized basis
over a similar term in an amount equal to the lease payments in a similar economic environment. As of June 30, 2022-2023 , the
weighted- average discount rate is 4 . 03 %. Lease and non- lease components — In certain cases the Company is required to
pay for certain additional charges for operating costs, including insurance, maintenance, taxes, and other costs incurred, which
are billed based on both usage and as a percentage of the Company’ s share of total square footage. The Company determined
that these costs are non- lease components , and they are not included in the calculation of the lease liabilities because they are




variable. Payments for these variable, non- lease components are considered variable lease costs and are recognized in the period
in which the costs are incurred. F- +9-18§ Below are the lease commitments for the next 5 years: Schedule of Eease-lease
commitments Years Ending June 30 Lease Expense 2023-2024 § 208,305-2024-246, 004 2025 253, 384 2026 260, 985 2027
343-268 , 836-Thereafter—815 2028 45, 020 [css imputed interest (433-105 , 448-199 ) Total $ 4969 , 009 239,336-On June
20, 2022, the Company entered into a sublease Agreement-agreement with One Health Labs (the *“ Subtenant ), whereby the
Subtenant agreed to lease 3, 554 square feet of space currently rented by the Company in Century City Medical Plaza as of June
25,2022 for a period of 3. 5 years with an option to renew for the remaining term of the lease that ends as of June 19, 2028. The
base rent #s-was $ 17, 770 per month plus $ 750 towards utility fees that are part of the original lease agreement and-will-would
have inerease-increased by 3 % each year over the term of the sab—lease-sublease . The Company received a total of $ 57, 022
62+-67-on July 1, 2022 after execution of the sublease to cover the first month rent, utility fee and deposit. The first sublease
payment began on August 1, 2022. In accordance with ASC Topic 842, the Company treats the sublease as a separate lease, as
the Company was not relieved of the primary obligation under the original lease. The Company continues to account for the
Century City Medical Plaza lease as a lessee and in the same manner as prior to the commencement date of the sublease. The
Company accounts for the sublease as a lessor of the lease. The sublease is classified as an operating lease, as it does not meet
the criteria of a sales- type or direct financing lease. On April 18, 2023, the Company entered into a sublease termination
agreement with the Subtenant, whereby the Subtenant and the Company agreed to terminate the sublease effective as of
April 30, 2023. The Subtenant agreed to pay the Company $ 139, 460 along with the security deposit of $ 35, 540 for a
total termination fee of $ 175, 000, to permit early termination of the sublease. The Company will-reeognize-recognized
operating income from the sublease on a straight- line basis in its statements of operations over the lease term. During the year
ended June 30, 2023, the Company paid $ 439, 519 in operating leases. During the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and
2021, the net operating lease expenses were as follows: Schedule of net operating lease expenses Years ended June 30, 2622
Operating Lease Expense $ 322, 447 $ 356, 073 Sub- $339,-094-Sublease—-- lease inreeme-Income (352, 700) (2, 962) —Total
Net Lease Expense $ (30, 253) $ 353, 111 $339;,094-F-206-16 NOTE 6 — NOTES PAYABLE Convertible Notes Payable- On
February 6, 2020, the Company issued two Convertible Notes (the “ Convertible Notes ™) to Paseco APS (the “ Holder ), a
Danish limited company and an existing stockholder of the Company each with a face value amount of $§ 600, 000, convertible
into shares of Common Stock, $ 0. 0001 par value per share. The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes was
due and payable on February 6, 2023. Interest on the Convertible Notes commenced accruing on the date of issuance at six
percent (6 %) per annum, computed on the basis of twelve 30- day months, and #s-was compounded monthly on the final day of
each calendar month based upon the principal and all accrued and unpdld 1ntelest outstdndmg as of such compound date The
interest was paydble in cash on a semi- annual basis —Fhe-h § Notesh sht-at-any-timey h

ﬁeﬂhafes—e-ﬁt-he—eeﬁa-p&&y—s-eeﬁameﬂ—swek The conversion price was equal to b 12 00 per share of Common Stock. The

Holder did not exercise the conversion feature that expired on February 6, 2021. The Company evaluated the Convertible Notes
in accordance with ASC 470- 20 and identified that they each contain an embedded conversion feature that shall not be
bifurcated from the host document (i. e., the Convertible Notes) as they are not deemed to be readily convertible into cash. All
proceeds received from the issuance were ha-ve—beeﬁ—recoomzed asa hdblhty on the balance sheet. :Phe—Geﬁveﬁ-rb-}e—Nefes

AV e-Notes-amoun an 6 vely—Effective December 30,
2022 (the “ Effectlve Date ”) the Comp"my amended and restated the Conv ertlble Notes (the “ Amended and Restated
Secured Notes ). Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Secured Notes, the due date was extended to February 28, 2024, and
unless the Company consummates a public offering or private placement prior to the maturity date (a “ Qualified
Offering ) and the Holder elects to convert the outstanding principal balance into Common Stock at the price being
paid by the investors in such Qualified Offering. The interest was increased to twelve percent (12 %) per annum, which was
prepaid by the Company in full on the date of amendment through the issuance of 198, 439 shares of the Company’ s Common
Stock based-er-which is comprised of 29, 419 shares for accrued interest up to the Effective Date and 169, 020 shares
related to the prepayment of interest through the extension date of the Amended and Restated Secured Notes using the
closing market price on that-the Effective date-Date , of § 1. 03 . The ;whieh-ineluded29-49-sharesfor-interest-acerted
ﬂ&feﬁgh—Beeeﬁrber—}G—Z-@Q%—aﬂd-t-he—obhgdtlons of the C ompany under the Amended and Restated Secured Notes were secured
by a security Agreement-agreement (the “ Security Agreement ) . The Company evaluated the Amended and Restated
Secured Notes and conversion feature to determine the appropriate accounting treatment based on the terms of the
agreement. In accordance with ASC 480- Distinguising Liabilities from Equity, the Company determined that the
Amended and Restated Secured Notes embody an obligation that may require the Company to settle with the issuance of
a variable number of shares, where the monetary value of the obligation is based predominantly on a fixed monetary
amount of $ 1, 200, 000 known at inception. Accordingly, the Company recorded the Amended and Restated Secured
Notes as share settled debt. The total value of the shares issued was $ 204, 392 which included $ 174, 090 of prepaid
interest and $ 30, 302 for accrued interest as of December 30, 2022. On June 26, 2023, the holder of the Amended and
Restated Secured Notes notified the Company that they wished to elect to exercise their conversion right triggered by a
private placement. Therefore, all outstanding $ 1, 200, 000 Amended and Restated Secured Notes were converted into 2,
264, 150 shares of Common Stock and 1, 132, 075 Warrants. There were no Amended and Restated Secured Notes
outstanding after the foregoing conversion. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded accrued interest in the
amount of zero 0 and $ 24, 181, which is included in accrued expenses, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2023
and 2022, the interest expense related to the Convertible Notes amounted to $ 210, 543 and $ 72, 875 respectively. The



Convertible Notes balance as of June 30, 2023 was zero 0 . Note Payable- On March 30, 2020 (the ** Issuance Date ), the
Company issued a Promissory Note in the principal amount of $ 5, 000, 000 (the “ Promissory Note ) to the Holder. The
principal amount of the Promissory Note was originally payable on November 30, 2021 (the “ Maturity Date ). The Promissory
Note bore interest at a fixed rate of 6 % per annum, computed based on the number of days between the Issuance Date and the
Maturity Date, which was prepaid by the Company in full on the Issuance Date through the issuance of 188, 485 shares of the
Company’ s Common Stock based on the closing market price on that date for a total value of $ 501, 370. The Company
evaluated the Promissory Note and PIK interest in accordance with ASC 470- Debt and ASC 835- Interest, respectively.
Pursuant to ASC 470- 20, proceeds received from the issuance are to be recognized at their relative fair value, thus the liability
is shown net of the corre%ponding discount of $ 493, 192, which is the relative fair value of the shares issued for the PIK
interest on the closing date using the effective interest method. The discount of $ 493, 192 will be accreted over the life of the
Promissory Note. F- 17 On February 11, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the Promissory Note #-the-prinetpat
amountof$-5,-000,-600-that extended the Maturlty Date to November 30, 2022. All other terms of the Promissory Note
remained the same. The change in Maturity Date required an additional year of interest at the fixed rate of 6 % per annum,
which was prepaid by the Company in full on the date of the amendment through the issuance of 74, 054 shares of the
Company’ s Common Stock based on the closing market price on that date for a total value of $ 298, 178. On May 17, 2022, the
Company entered into a second amendment to the Promissory Note that extended the Maturity Date est-to November 30, 2023
and increased the interest rate from 6 % to 12 % per annum. All other terms of the Promissory Note remained the same. The
change in Maturity Date required an additional year of interest at the fixed rate of 12 % per annum. Pursuant to the amendment,
the Company prepaid interest for the period November 30, 2022 until May 30, 2023 on the date of the amendment through the
issuance of 47, 115 shares of the Company’ s Common Stock based on the closing market price on that date for a total value of
$299, 178. All other accrued interest payable from May 30, 2023 to the Maturity Date was shallbe-payable by the Company on
May 30, 2023, at the option of the Holder either (i) in cash or (ii) in non- assessable shares of the Company’ s Common Stock,
valued at the ClO%ll’lg %ale prlce of the Common Stock of the Nasdaq Capltal Market on May 30, 2023. FefThe Holder elected

cash (the « Interest Payment ”) p b Seount-a 3 .
Effective December 30, 2022, the Company entered into a thlrd amendment to the Promlqsory Note. Purquant to the thlrd
amendment, the Company’ s obligations under the Promissory Note were secured by the-a Security Agreement. F=24-To secure
the Company’ s obligations under each of the Amended and Restated Secured Notes and the Promissory Note, the Company
entered into a Security Agreement with the Holder, pursuant to which the Company granted a lien on all assets of the Company
(the “ Collateral ) for the benefit of the Holder. Upon an Event of Default (as defined in the Amended and Restated Secured
Notes and Promissory Note, respectively) the Holder may, among other things, collect or take possession of the Collateral,
proceed with the foreclosure of the security interest in the Collateral or sell, lease, or dispose of the Collateral. On June 12,
2023, the Holder notified the Company that it wanted to apply the Interest Payment due to it towards the Company’ s
next private placement. On June 26, 2023, the Holder participated in a private placement. As part of the private
placement, the Company issued (i) 567, 588 shares of its Common Stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share and (ii) warrants
to purchase 283, 794 shares of common stock at a purchase price of $ 0. 53 per share, for aggregate proceeds to the
Company of $ 300, 822 For the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, discount amortization of $ 348, 621 and $ 297, 212
was charged to interest expense. The Promissory Note balance, net of discount at June 30, 2023 is $ 4, 624, 947. F- 18
Finance Agreement — On November 30, 2024-2022 , the Company entered into a premium finance agreement (the
Agreement ”) related to insurance, which resulted in a prepaid expense with a principal amount of $ 666-1, 139, 875 at 3-6 .
99-69 % interest per annum. The repayment of the Agreement will be made in nine equal monthly installments of § 96, 220
after a down payment of $ 300, 000. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 the Company made repayments of § 1,
121, 767 and $ 56-560 , 469-848, respectively . The remaining balance at June 30, 20222023 is $ 4166-184 , 625-733 ; the
amount is reflected in other current liabilities. For the year ended June 30, 2822-2023 , the Company recorded total interest
expense in the amount of § 521 , 565-180 related to the Agreement. This amount is reflected in other income and expenses.
Total interest expense recorded for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024- was $ 580, 344 and $ 372, 844 and-$
379-608-, respectively. NOTE 7 — INCOME TAXES The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC
Topic 740, Accounting for Income Taxes; which requires the Company to provide a net deferred tax asset or liability equal to
the expected future tax benefit or expense of temporary reporting differences between book and tax accounting and any
available operating loss or tax credit carryforwards. The amount of and ultimate realization of the benefits from the deferred tax
assets for income tax purposes is dependent, in part, upon the tax laws in effect, the Company’ s future earnings, and other
future events, the effects of which cannot be determined. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-2624-, the Company had net
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $ 476, 965, 239 and $ 244, 899, 881 and-$-54327-666-, respectively, giving rise
to deferred tax assets of $ 140, 547,314 and $ 71, 299, 011 and-$33;536;884-respectively. The net operating loss
carryforwards generated prior to January 1, 2018 expire over various dates from 2031 to 2636-2037 . All subsequent net
operating loss carryforwards are indefinite. The Company files Danish and U. S. income tax returns and these returns are
generally no longer subject to tax examinations for years prior to 26482019 for the Danish tax returns and 26472020 for the U.
S. tax returns. The temporary differences, tax credits and carry forwards gave rise to the following deferred tax assets
(liabilities) at June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-2024: Summary-Schedule of deferred tax asset-assets (liabilities) June 362622
Excess of tax over book depreciation of fixed assets $ 8, 258 $ 6, 406 $-(6,390)-Excess of tax over book depreciation of patents
8,415 5, 716 5;449-Stock / options compensation 3, 885,996 2, 831, 137 53492F4-Depreciation and amortization 152, 059
118, 020 845340-Net operating loss carryforwards 140, 547,314 71, 299, 011 43:-536,884-Change in tax rate — — Valuation
allowance (74-144 , 260-602 , 299-042 ) (14-74 . 8+6-260 , HH4-290 ) Total Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities) $ — $ — F-22-19



In accordance with prevailing accounting guidance, the Company is required to recognize and disclose any income tax
uncertainties. The guidance provides a two- step approach to recognizing and measuring tax benefits and liabilities when
realization of the tax position is uncertain. The first step is to determine whether the tax position meets the more- likely- than-
not condition for recognition, and the second step is to determine the amount to be recognized based on the cumulative
probability that exceeds 50 %. The amount of and ultimate realization of the benefits from the deferred tax assets for income tax
purposes is dependent, in part, upon the tax laws in effect, the Company’ s future earnings, and other future events, the effects
of which can be difficult to determine and can only be estimated. Management estimates that it is more likely than not that the
Company will not generate adequate net profits to use the deferred tax assets; and consequently, a valuation allowance was
recorded for all deferred tax assets. A reconciliation of income tax expense at the federal statutory rate to income tax expense at
the Company’ s effective rate is as follows for the year-years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and262+: Sammary-Schedule of
reconciliation of income tax expense at-federal-statutory-rate-Years ended June 30, 2022-Computed tax at expected statutory rate
$ (5970 , 456-341 . +76-751 ) § (F59 ,876-450 , 732-176 ) Non- US income taxed at different rates — — H425;2763Non-
deductible expenses / other items 34-— Valuation allowance 70, 341, 751 59, 450, 176 678,32 Income Tax Expense
(Benefit) $ 34— § €25;276)>-The components of income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-consisted of the following: Summary-Schedule of components of income tax expense
(benefit) frenreontinaingoperations-Y cars ended June 30, 2622-Current Income Tax Expense Danish income tax (benefit) $ —
$ —{25;296)-Total Current Tax Expense (Benefit) § — $§ — 25;2F6)-Deferred Income Tax Expense (Benefit) Excess of tax
over book depreciation of fixed assets $ 8,258 $ 6, 406 $6,189)>-Excess of tax over book depreciation of patents 8,415 5, 716
5;-449-Stock / options compensation 3, 885, 996 2, 831, 137 5492-744+-Depreciation and amortization 152, 059 118, 020 8+
+46-Net operating loss carryforwards 43-140 , 536-547 , $8413-314 71 , 536-299 , 884-011 Change in tax rate — — Change in
the valuation allowance ( #4-144 , 266-602 , 296-042 ) (+4-74 , 836-260 , +H4-290 ) Total Deferred Tax Expense § — § —
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) results primarily from the reversal of temporary timing differences between tax and
financial statement income. NOTE 8§ — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY Preferred Stock — The Company has 10, 000, 000
authorized shares of Preferred Stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 and-2024, there were zero 0
shares issued and outstanding. F- 23-20 Common Stock — The Company has 100, 000, 000 authorized shares of Common
Stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2624—, there were 63, 698, 144 and 53, 007, 082 and-52;
2149;-661-shares issued and outstanding, respectively. Voting — Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each
share held of record on each matter submitted to a vote of stockholders, including the election of directors, and do not have any
right to cumulate votes in the election of directors. Dividends — Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably such
dividends as the Company’ s Board of Directors from time to time may declare out of funds legally available. Liquidation
Rights — In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding- up of the affairs of the Company, after payment of all efeur
debts and liabilities, the holders of Common Stock will be entitled to share ratably in the distribution of any efeurremaining
assets. Purchase Agreement with Lincoln Park Capital On July 8, 2020, we-the Company entered into a purchase agreement
(the ““ 2020 Purchase Agreement ) with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC (“ Lincoln Park ), pursuant to which the Company
may sell and issue to Lincoln Park, and Lincoln Park is obligated to purchase, up to $ 20, 000, 000 of shares of ear-Common
Stock from time to time through August 1, 2023. In consideration for entering into the 2020 Purchase Agreement, we-the
Company 1ssued 139, 567 shares of Common Stock to Lincoln Park as a commitment fee on July 21, 2020 Btrﬂﬁg—t-he—yea-fs

matied-avattable-tn h —As of October 17 2022 we—the Company no longer ha-ve—had
access to this-the 2020 Purchase A(neement as we—a-fe—the Company is no longer able to use the registration statement on Form
S- 3 that registered the shares issuable to Lincoln Park under the Purchase Agreement. On June 20, 2023, the Company
entered into a purchase agreement (the “ 2023 Purchase Agreement ) with Lincoln Park, pursuant to which the
Company may sell and issue to Lincoln Park, and Lincoln Park is obligated to purchase, up to $ 20, 000, 000 of shares of
Common Stock over the 36- month term of the 2023 Purchase Agreement. Concurrently with entering into the 2023
Purchase Agreement, the Company also entered into a registration rights agreement with Lincoln Park, pursuant to
which it agreed to provide Lincoln Park with certain registration rights related to the shares issued under the 2023
Purchase Agreement. In consideration for entering into the 2023 Purchase Agreement, the Company issued 696, 021
shares of Common Stock to Lincoln Park as a commitment fee on June 20, 2023. During the years ended June 30, 2023
and June 30, 2022 we issued zero0 and 497, 340 shares of Common Stock to Lincoln Park under the 2023 Purchase
Agreement for a purchase price of zero0 and $ 4, 676, 399, respectively. F- 21 March 2023 Private Placement In March
2023, the Company issued 2, 378, 070 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 1, 189, 036 shares of common
stock (“ Purchase Warrants ) resulting in proceeds of $ 2, 711, 000 in a private placement offering (“ Private Placement
”). The Company effected the issuances of the shares of Common Stock from March 13, 2023 to March 29, 2023. The
Purchase Warrants were immediately exercisable and had an exercise term of five years with an exercise price of $ 1. 14
per share. The combined purchase price for one share of common stock and one Purchase Warrant was $ 1. 14 per
share. The private placement was made directly by the Company to persons who are not U. S. persons in reliance upon
Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933. No underwriter or placement agent was engaged by the Company for this
private placement. June 2023 Private Placement Pursuant to a private placement offering, on June 26, 2023, the
Company issued 4, 718, 532 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 2, 359, 266 shares of Common Stock
resulting in proceeds of $ 1, 300, 823 in a private placement offering and a reduction of notes payable of $ 1, 200, 000.
The warrants were immediately exercisable and had an exercise term of five years with an exercise price of $ 0. 53 per
share. The combined purchase price for one share of Common Stock and one warrant was $ 0. 53 per share. The private



placement was made directly by the Company to persons who are not U. S. persons in reliance upon Regulation S of the
Securities Act of 1933. No underwriter or placement agent was engaged by the Company for this private placement .
Common Stock Issuances On June 26, 2023, all outstanding $ 1, 200, 000 Amended and Restated Secured Notes were
converted into 2, 264, 150 shares of Common Stock and 1, 132, 075 Warrants. There were no Amended and Restated
Secured Notes outstanding after the foregoing conversion. One June 26, 2023, the Company issued 4, 718, 532 shares of
Common Stock and warrants to purchase 2, 359, 266 shares of common stock resulting in proceeds of $ 1, 300, 823 in a
private placement offering and the aforementioned reduction of notes payable of $ 1, 200, 000. The warrants were
immediately exercisable and had an exercise term of five S years with an exercise price of $ 0. 53 per share. The
combined purchase price for one share of Common Stock and one warrant was $ 0. 53 per share. On June 20, 2023, the
Company issued 696, 021 shares of Common Stock to Lincoln Park as a commitment fee as part of a purchase
agreement. On April 27, 2023, there were 100, 000 restricted shares issued that immediately vested and were converted
into shares of Common Stock in exchange for consulting services valued at $ 120, 000. During March 2023, the Company
issued 2, 378, 070 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 1, 189, 036 shares of Common Stock resulting in
proceeds of $ 2, 711, 000 in a private placement offering. The Company effected the issuances of the shares of Common
Stock from March 13, 2023 to March 29, 2023. The Purchase Warrants were immediately exercisable and had an
exercise term of five 5 years with an exercise price of $ 1. 14 per share. The combined purchase price for one share of
Common Stock and one Purchase Warrant was $ 1. 14 per share. On February 10, 2023, there were 100, 000 restricted
share units issued that immediately vested and were converted into shares of Common Stock in exchange for consulting
services valued at $ 108, 000. On December 30, 2022, the Company issued 198, 439 shares of Common stock valued at $
204, 392 based on the closing price of the common stock on that date, issued in lieu of prepaid interest related to the
amended and restated secured notes (see Note 6). F- 22 On July 14, 2022, certain of our warrant holders exercised
warrants to purchase 1, 250, 000 shares of Common Stock for total proceeds to the Company of $ 1, 625, 000, with
corresponding earn- out distribution of the same number of shares in connection with the acquisition of Renovaro
BioPharma, Inc., based on the share price on that date of $ 2. 21. This non- cash earn- out distribution impacted
stockholders’ equity in the amount of $ 2, 762, 500 based on the share price on July 14, 2022 of § 2. 21. On June 17, 2022,
the Company issued 47, 115 shares of Common Stock valued at $ 299, 178 based on the closing price on that date, issued in licu
of prepaid interest related to an amendment that extended the maturity date of the Unsecured Note to November 30, 2023 (see
Note 6). During the period ending June 30, 2022, the Company issued 497, 340 shares of Common Stock at an average price of
$ 9. 25 per share pursuant to the Purchase Agreement with Lincoln Park for total proceeds to the Company of $ 4, 676, 399. On
April 4, 2022, the Company issued 1, 700 shares of Common Stock valued at the price of § 2. 89 per share pursuant to the
exercise of vested stock options for total proceeds of § 4, 913. On January 11, 2022, the Company issued 6, 266 shares of
Common Stock related to restricted share units that vested on January 07, 2022, at a value of § 40, 561. On December 28, 2021,
there were 35, 000 restricted share units issued that immediately vested and were converted into shares of Common Stock in
exchange for consulting services valued at § 252, 350. On December 24, 2021, the Company issued 100, 000 shares of
Common Stock valued at the price of $ 1. 30 per share pursuant to the exercise of vested warrants for total proceeds of $ 130,
000, with corresponding earn- out distribution in the same amount in connection with the acquisition of EneehtarrRenovaro
BioPharma s3#e5-which was distributed on March 31, 2022, based on the share price on December 23, 2021 of § 7. 98. This
non- cash transaction impacted stockholders’ equity in the amount of $ 798, 000. Warrants £-24-On June-36-July 14 , 262+
2022 , t-he—Gemp&ny—tssuedé—certam of our warrant holders exerc1sed warrants to purchase 1, 250 000 shmcs of Common

-Pufehase—z*gfeemeﬂt— or toml p1ocuds to the ( ompany of % %6—1 625 -843—99-8—&et—ef—$£—1§6—9—1%e-ﬁtssu&nee—eesfs—}n4&ﬂe
%GQ—I—ﬂire—Gemp&ny—rssued—Z-Ge— ()()() with correspondmg earn- out distribution of the same number of shares e-PGeﬂaﬂaeﬁ

valued-at-the-price-of $3—05pershare-in wnmchon with tlm aequmhon of Eneehr&n-Renovaro -Bteph&fma—BloPharma -I-ﬁe—

This non- cash transaetion-earn- out distribution impacted stockholders” equity in the amount of $ 492-2 , 522-762, 500 based
on the share price on July 14, 2022 of $ 2. 21. The Company recorded a loss on extinguishment of contingent
consideration liability of $ 419, 182 during the year ended December 30, 2023 which reflects the difference between the
fair value of the shares and the contingent consideration liability at the time of extinguishment. As of June 30, 2023, all
outstanding 2017 Warrants were exercised and there is no further contingent consideration liability balance remaining
as of the end of this period . Acquisition of EneehianrRenovaro Biopharma / Contingently issuable shares On February 16,
2018, the acquisition of Eneehian-Renovaro Biopharma was completed. As part of the acquisition, the stockholders of
Enechian-Renovaro Biopharma received (i) 18, 081, 962 shares of Common Stock, and (ii) the right to receive Contingent
Shares of Common Stock pro rata upon the exercise or conversion of warrants, which were outstanding at closing. As of June

30,2622-2023 , no further +5250;-006-Contingent Shares are petentiaty-issuable seeNete- Acquisition of Eneehtan



Renovaro Denmark At June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024- the Company maintained a reserve of 17, 414 Escrow Shares, all of
which are reflected as issued and outstanding in the accompanying financial statements. The Escrow Shares are reserved to
acquire the shares of Eneehtan-Renovaro Denmark held by non- consenting shareholders of Eneehtan-Renovaro Denmark on
both June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, in accordance with Section 70 of the Danish Companies Act and the Articles of
Association of PanBPritRenovaro Denmark. There have been 167, 639 shares of Common Stock issued to non- consenting
shareholders of Eneehtan-Renovaro Denmark as of June 30, 26222023 . During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and
202+, the Company did not tssted-- issue any zere-0-and-59;-835-shares of Common Stock, respectively, to such non-
consenting shareholders of Eneehian-Renovaro Denmark. Stock- based Compensation The Company recognizes compensation
costs for stock option awards to employees based on their grant- date fair value. The value of each stock option is estimated on
the date of grant using the Black- Scholes option- pricing model. In the year ended June 30, 26222023 , the weighted- average
assumptions used to estimate the grant date fair values of the stock options granted using the Black- Scholes option- pricing
model are as follows: F- 25Summary-23Schedule of weighted- average assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the stock
options granted Eneehtan-Renovaro Biosciences Inc. Expected term (in years) 5. 6-3 — 6. 58-5 Volatility 82-84 . 29-66 % — 96
92 . 39-36 % Risk free interest rate 8-2 . 770 %- 3-4 . 82-24 % Dividend yield 0 % The Company recognized stock- based
compensation expense related to all equity instruments of $ 3, 535, 051 and $ 5, 490, 602 and-$+444;,798-for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively. At June 30, 2622-2023 , the Company had approximately $ 6-1 , 235462 , 329
866 of unrecognized compensation cost related to non- vested options. Plan Options On February 6, 2014, the Board adopted
the Company’ s 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2014 Plan ), and the Company reserved 1, 206, 000 shares of Common Stock
for issuance in accordance with the terms of the 2014 Plan. On October 30, 2019, the Board approved and on October 31, 2019,
the Company’ s stockholders adopted EneehiarrRenovaro ’ s 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the “ 2019 Plan ), which replaced
the 2014 Plan. The 2019 Plan authorized options to be awarded to not exceed the sum of (1) 6, 000, 000 new shares, and (2) the
number of shares available for the grant of awards as of the effective date under the 2014 Plan plus any options related to awards
that expire, are terminated, surrendered, or forfeited for any reason without issuance of shares under the 2014 Plan after the
effective date of the 2019 Plan. Pursuant to the 2019 Plan, the Company granted options to purchase 3-193 , 000 249;266-shares
to employee% with a three year Vestrng perrod durrng the year ended June 30, %92—2—2023 —eﬂe—mi-l-liefl-e-ﬁt-hes‘&slfla-fes—afe

granted options to purcha%e 8—1—3 766-219, 200 qhare% Wrth a three- year Vestrng period under the 2019 Plan. One million of
those shares were subject to performance based vesting criteria, and as of June 30, 2023, no expense was recognized on
those options based on the assessment that those shares were not probable of vesting. As performance criteria for Years
1 through 3 were not probable of achievement, the entire one million option shares were forfeited. During the year ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, the Company granted options to purchase 184, 800 issued, 18, 960 forfeited, and zero 000
shares of Common stock, respectively, to employees with a six- month vesting period. F- 24 NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS During the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company granted
options to purchase 73, 200 issued, 12, 640 forfeited, and 65, 000 and-8-zere—shares of Common stock, respectively, to
employees with a one- year vesting period. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and2624-, the Company granted
options to purchase 355, 359 and 103, 668 and484;-589-shares, respectively, to the Board of Directors and Scientific Advisory
Board Members with a one- year vesting period. During the years ended June 30, 2023, and 2022 ;ard-262+-, the Company
granted options to purchase zero 0 and 60, 000 and-8-zere-shares, respectively, for consulting services with a three- year vesting
period. During the years ended June 30, 2023, and 2022 ;-and-2024, the Company granted options to purchase 75, 000 and 29,
642 and-0-zero-shares, respectively, for consulting services with a one- year vesting period. During the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022 and2024-, the Company granted options to purchase zero 0 and 21, 979 and+45;-800-shares, respectively, for
consulting services with immediate vesting. All of the above options are exercisable at the market price of the Company’ s
Common Stock on the date of the grant. To date the Company has granted options under the Plan (* Plan Options ) to purchase
45, 828710 , 642-001 shares of Common Stock. F=26-A summary of the Plan Options outstanding at June 30, 2622-2023 is
presented below: Summary-Schedule of stock options outstanding Options Outstanding Options Exercisable Exercise Price
Ranges Number Outstanding Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (years) Weighted Average Exercise Price Number
Exercisable Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (years) Weighted Average Exercise Price $ 2-0 . 86-94 — 4. 50 264-1
, 957094, 715 8.74 $ 2. 14 405, 296 7. 62-57 $ 3-2 . 92 29233;43+F4+$3149-5 4. 51 — 6. 50 3-2 , $93-503 , 369-8-102 7 . 76
62 $4.83488891,3726-168,1027 . 7211 $ 65 . 4826 $ 6. 51 — 12. 00 856-803 , 393 87 . 2720 $ 8. 8454302 694 , 067
016 7.56-00 $ 7.92-98 Total 4, 307401 , 211 7. 820-- 82 8-$ 4 . 5578 2,267,415 7. 16 S 5. 68 F- 25 371,264;-869-721-5-6-
38-A summary of changes since July 1, 2024-2022 are presented below: Summary-Schedule of stock option activity Weighted
Average Weighted Average Weighted Average Shares Exercise Price Remaining Life Intrinsic Value Outstanding at July 1,
2621-2022 4, 307, 820 $ 5. 37 8. 55 $ — Granted 881, 359 | ;329,153-$-6-. 83 24-842-5-5H,239-Granted-3;499,489-5-00
Exercised — — 57080y2-8%-Forfeited ( 549-787 , +22-968 ) 54 . +6-68 Expired / Canceled — Outstanding at June 30, 2622
2023 4,367-401 , 820-211 $ 54 . 37878 7 . 55-82 § — Exercisable at June 30, 20222023 +2 , 264-267 , 869415 $ 65 . 38-68
7.2416 $ — At June 30, 20222023 |, the Company has +2 , 264267 , 869-415 cxercisable Plan Options. The total intrinsic
value of options exercisable at June 30, 28222023 was €-zero. Intrinsic value is measured using the fair market value at the date
of exercise (for shares exercised) and at June 30, 2822-2023 (for outstanding options), less the applicable exercise price.
Common Stock Purchase Warrants A summary of the warrants outstanding at June 30, 2622-2023 , and changes in the warrants
in the year ended June 30, 2022-2023 are presented below: Semmary-Schedule of common stock purchase warrants outstanding



Weighted Average Weighted Average Underlying Shares Exercise Price Remaining Life Outstanding at July 1, 26242022 1,

356-250, 000 $ 1. 3040 . 82-03 Granted ————3, 548, 302 0. 73 4. 80 Excrcised (+86-1, 250, 000) 1. 3
June30,20221,250,-000-51 80 30-0-03-F- 27Summary-26Schedule of common stock purchase warrants Outstanding

Equivalent Shares Exercisable Exercise Prices Underlying Shares Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (years)
Weighted Average Exercise Price Number Exercisable Weighted Average Exercise Price $ 0. 53- 1. 14 3, 548,36-302 4. 80 $ 15
250,-606-0. 03-73 3, 548, 302 $ +0 . 73 36-256,-600-51-30-Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) The Company recognized stock-
based compensation expense related to RSUs of zero0 and $ 258, 559 and-$347,-800-for the years ended June 30, 2023 and
2022 and2024-, respectively. At June 30, 2622-2023 , the Company had approximately zero unrecognized compensation cost

related to restricted stock units. A—s&mmary—ef—Re%trlcted Stock Units-eutstanding-atJane-36,202t-and-changes-inthe-Awards
(RSA) The Company recognized stock- based compensation expense related to RSUs-RSAs in-of $ 108, 000 and zero0 for

the year-years ended June 30 2023 and 2022 are—pfesen-ted—be}ew-Stmmaﬁ'—e-ﬁ respectlvely The restrlcted qtock awards are
related to a grant of 100 AttS-© ; .

0ns1derat10n for consultlng services . 45%2—$—€rﬂr&ted—36—266—7—23—E*efersed-(41—266)—7—}9—€aﬂeeﬂed4
-E*ptfed—@tttstaﬁd-mg—&t—.F&ne%@—l‘@QH—$—NOTE 9 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

n July 9, 2018, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with G- Tech Bio,
LLC, a California limited liability company (“ G- Tech ) to assist the Company with the development of the gene therapy and
cell therapy modalities for the prevention, treatment, and amelioration of HIV in humans, and with the development of a
genetically enhanced Dendritic Cell for use as a wide spectrum platform for various diseases (including but not limited to
cancers and infectious diseases) (the “ G- Tech Agreement ). G- Tech was entitled to consulting fees for 20 months , with a
monthly consulting fee of not greater than $ 130, 000 per month. Upon the completion of the 20 months, &-the monthly
con%ultlng fee of $ 25, 000 continued for scientific consulting and knowledge transfer on existing HIV experiments until the

%erv1ce§ were no longer belng rendered or the G Tech Agreement is termlnated G—"Feeh—ts—eeﬁtreﬂed—by—eeftam—mefnbefs—ef

statements pe ; ; RS .A%ofMayZS 2022, the
consultant was no longer able to render services , therefore no expense was mcurred for the year ended June 30, 2023 . 28
For the year ended June 30, 2022, $ 275, 000 was charged to research and development expenses in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations related to this consulting agreement. On January 31, 2020, the Company entered into a Statement
of Work and License Agreement (the “ HBV License Agreement ) by and among the Company, ard-G- Tech, and G Health
Research Foundation, a not for profit entity organized under the laws of California doing business as Seraph Research Institute
(“ SRI ) (collectively the “ HBV Licensors "), whereby the Company acquired a perpetual, sublicensable, exclusive license (the
“HBYV License ) for a treatment under development (the “ Treatment ”’) aimed to treat Hepatitis B Virus (HBV) infections. The
HBYV License Agreement states that in consideration for the HBV License, the Company shall provide cash funding for research
costs and equipment and certain other in- kind funding related to the Treatment over a 24 month period, and provides for an up-
front payment of $ 1. 2 million within 7 days of January 31, 2020, along with additional payments upon the occurrence of
certain benchmarks in the development of the technology set forth in the HBV License Agreement, in each case subject to the
terms of the HBV License Agreement. Additionally, the HBV License Agreement provides for cooperation related to the
development of intellectual property related to the Treatment and for a 2 % royalty to G- Tech on any net sales that may occur
under the HBV License. On February 6, 2020, the Company paid the $ 1. 2 million up- front payment. The HBV License
Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, and covenants of the parties with respect to the development of the
Treatment and the HBV License. The cash funding for research costs pursuant to the HBV License Agreement consisted of
monthly payments amounting to $ 144, 500 that covered scientific staffing resources to complete the project as well as periodic
payments for materials and equipment needed to complete the project. There were no payments made after January 31, 2022.
During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and202+, the Company paid a total of zero0 and $ 1, 011, 500 and-$2,409;
999— reqpectlvely, for %Clentlﬁc %tafﬂng resources, research 1%&—B—and development and INB—Eﬂabhﬂg—smd-tes—Bt&rﬂg—t-he

Inveqtlganonal New Dmg (IND) enabhng studles Durlng the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 the Company paid zero0
and $ 1, 500, 000, respectively, for the milestone completion of a Pre- IND process following receipt of written comments in
accordance with the HBV License Agreement. The Company has filed a claim against the HBV Licensors, which includes
certain payments it made related to this license (see Contingencies sub- section below). On April 18, 2021, the Company entered
into a Statement of Work and License Agreement (the “ Development License Agreement ), by and among the Company, ane
G = Tech and SRI (collectively, the “ Development Licensors ), whereby the Company acquired a perpetual sublicensable,
exclusive license (the “ Development License ) to research, develop, and commercialize certain formulations which are aimed
at preventing and treating pan- coronavirus or the potential combination of the pan- coronavirus and pan- influenza, including
the SARS- coronavirus that causes COVID- 19 and pan- influenza (the “ Prevention and Treatment ). F- 27 The Development
License Agreement was entered into pursuant to the existing Framework Agreement between the parties dated November 15,
2019. The Development License Agreement states that in consideration for the Development License, the Company shall
provide cash funding for research costs and equipment and certain other in- kind funding related to the Prevention and
Treatment over a 24- month period. Additionally, the Development License Agreement prevides-provided for an up- front
payment of $ 10, 000, 000 and a $ 760, 000 payment for expenditures to date prior to the effective date related to research
towards the Prevention and Treatment within 60 days of April 18, 2021. The amounts were paid on June 18, 2021 and June
25, 2021, respectively. The Development License Agreement provides for additional payments upon the occurrence of certain



benchmarks in the development of the technology set forth in the Development License Agreement, in each case subject to the
terms of the Development License Agreement. The Development License Agreement provides for cooperation related to the
development of intellectual property related to the Prevention and Treatment and for a 3 % royalty to G Tech on any net sales
that may occur under the Development License Agreement. For-During the yeat-years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 andJune
306,2024-the Company paid zero 0 and $ 150 ;-006-ard-$10;760- 000 related to the Prevention and Treatment research. The
Company is no longer pursuing any product candidates that relate to this license. The Company has filed a claim against the
Development Licensors to recover all monies it paid related to this license (see Contingencies sub- section below ). +29-On
August 25, 2021, the Company entered into an ALC Patent License and Research Funding Agreement in the HIV Field (the 2
ALC License Agreement ”) with Serhat Giimriikcii and SRI and-ts-prinetpals-(collectively, the “ ALC Licensors ”) whereby
the ALC Licensors granted the Company an exclusive, worldwide, perpetual, fully paid- up, royalty- free license, with the right
to sublicense, his-proprietary technology subject to a U. S. patent application, to make, use, offer to sell, sell or import products
for use solely for the prevention, treatment, amelioration of or therapy exclusively for HIV in humans, and research and
development exclusively relating to HIV in humans; provided the ALC Licensors retained the right to conduct HIV research in
the field. Pursuant to the ALC License Agreement, the Company granted a non- exclusive license back to the ALC Licensors,
under any patents or other intellectual property owned or controlled by the Company, to the extent arising from the ALC
License, to make, use, offer to sell, sell or import products for use in the diagnosis, prevention, treatment, amelioration or
therapy of any (i) HIV Comorbidities and (ii) any other diseases or conditions outside the HIV Field. The Company made an
initial payment to SRI of § 600, 000 and agreed to fund future HIV research conducted by the ALC Licensors, as mutually
agreed to by the parties. On September 10, 2021, pursuant to the ALC License Agreement, the Company paid the initial
payment of $ 600, 000. G- Tech and SRI are controlled by Serhat-Giimritketi-and-Anderson Wittekind, a shareholders—
shareholder of the Company. Shares held for non- consenting steekhelders-shareholders — The 17, 414 remaining shares of
Common Stock related to the Acquisition of EneehiarrRenovaroe Denmark have been reflected as issued and outstanding in the
accompanying financial statements. There were zero shares of Common Stock issued to such non- consenting steekholders
shareholders during the sear-years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 (see Note 8 —) . Service Agreements —— The Company has
had a consulting agreement for services of a Senior Medical Advisor for up to $ 210, 000 per year on a part- time basis. This
consulting agreement was terminated as of October 31, 2022. The Company maintains employment agreements with other staff
in the ordinary course of business. Securities Class Action Litigation. On July 26, 2022 and July 28, 2022, securities class action
complaints (the former, the “ Chow Action ” and the latter, the “ Manici Action ”) were filed by purported stockholders of
otrs-the Company in the United States District Court for the Central District of California against us-the Company and certain
of eur-the Company’ s current and former officers and directors. The complaints allege, among other things, that the defendants
violated Sections 10 (b) and 20 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Rule 10b- 5 thereunder, by making
false and misleading statements and omissions of material fact in connection with the Company’ s relationship with Serhat
Guimriikeii and its commercial prospects. The complaints seek unspecified damages, interest, fees, and costs. On November 22,
2022, the Manici Action was voluntarily dismissed without prejudice, but the Chow action remains pending. The
defendants did not respond to the complaint in the Manici action and have not yet responded to the complaint in the
Chow action. The Company intends to contest this matter but expresses no opinion as to the likelihood of a favorable
outcome. F- 28 Federal Derivative Litigation. On September 22, 2022, Samuel E. Koenig filed a shareholder derivative
action in the United States District Court for the Central District of California. On January 19, 2023, John Solak filed a
substantially similar shareholder derivative action in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. Both
derivative actions recite similar underlying facts as those alleged in the Securities Class Action Litigation. The actions,
filed on behalf of the Company, name Serhat Giimriikcii and certain of the Company’ s current and former directors as
defendants. The actions also name the Company as a nominal defendant. The actions allege violations of Sections 14 (a)
and 20 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and also set out claims for breach of fiduciary duty, contribution and
indemnification, aiding and abetting, and gross mismanagement. Plaintiffs do not quantify any alleged injury, but seek
damages, disgorgement, restitution, and other costs and expenses. On January 24, 2023, the United States District Court
for the Central District of California stayed the Koenig matter pending resolution of the defendants’ anticipated motion
to dismiss in the Securities Class Action Litigation. On April 6, 2023, the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware stayed the Solak matter pending resolution of the defendants’ anticipated motion to dismiss in the Securities
Class Action Litigation. The defendants have not yet responded to the-either eemplaints— complaint. The Company intends
to contest these matters but expresses no opinion as to the likelihood of favorable outcomes . State Derivative Litigation.
On October 20, 2022, Susan Midler filed a shareholder derivative action in the Superior Court of California, Los Angeles
County, reciting similar underlying facts as those alleged in the Securities Class Action Litigation. The action, filed on behalf of
the Company, names Serhat Glimriikcii and certain of the Company’ s current and former directors as defendants. The action
also names the Company as a nominal defendant. The action sets out claims for breaches of fiduciary duty, contribution yand
indemnification, aiding and abetting, and gross mismanagement. Plaintiff does not quantify any alleged injury, but seeks
damages, disgorgement, restitution, and other costs and expenses. On January 20, 2023, the Court stayed the Midler matter
pending resolution of the defendants’ anticipated motion to dismiss in the Securities Class Action Litigation. The Court
also set a status conference for November 6, 2023. The defendants have not yet responded to the complaint. The Company
intends to contest this matter but expresses no opinion as to the likelihood of a favorable outcome. On October 21, 2022,
the Company filed a Complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles against
Serhat Giimriikcii, William Anderson Wittekind (“ Wittekind ), G Tech, SG & AW Holdings, LLC, and SRI. The
Complaint alleges that the defendants engaged in a “ concerted, deliberate scheme to alter, falsify, and misrepresent to
the Company the results of multiple studies supporting its Hepatitis B and SARS - 36-CoV- 2 / influenza pipelines. ”



Specifically, “ Defendants manipulated negative results to reflect positive outcomes from various studies, and even
fabricated studies out of whole cloth. ” As a result of the defendants’ conduct, the Company claims that it “ paid
approximately $ 25 million to Defendants and third- parties that it would not otherwise have paid. ” On April 21, 2023,
defendants Wittekind, G Tech, SG & AW Holdings, LLC, and SRI filed a demurrer with respect to some, but not all, of
the Company’ s claims, as well as a motion to strike. On September 6, 2023, the court denied in part and granted in part
the pending motions. On September 7, 2023, the court entered a case management order setting the final status
conference, trlal and other mtervenmg deadlines. We will continue to pursue our claims against these defendants. On
March 1, 2021, the Company’ s former EneoehtanBioSetenees-Chicf Financial Officer, Robert Wolfe and his company,
Crossfield, Inc., filed a Complaint in the U. S. District Court for the District of Vermont against the Company, Enechtan
Renovaro BioSciences Denmark ApS, and certain directors and officers. In the Complaint, Mr. Wolfe and Crosstield, Inc.
asserted claims for abuse of process and malicious prosecution, alleging, inter alia, that the Company lacked probable cause to
file and prosecute an earlier action, and sought millions of dollars of compensatory damages, as well as punitive damages. The
allegations in the Complaint relate to an earlier action filed by the Company and EneehtarrRenovaroe BioSciences Denmark
ApS in the Vermont Superior Court, Orange Civil Division. On March 3, 2022, the court partially granted the Company’ s
motion to dismiss, dismissing the abuse of process claim against all defendants and all claims against Mark Dybul and Henrik
Grenfeldt- Serensen. On November 29, 2022, the Company filed a motion for summary judgment with respect to the sole
remaining claim of malicious prosecution. On August 24, 2023, the court denied the motion for summary judgment. On
September 7, 2023, the Company moved for reconsideration of the court’ s order. The Company denies the allegations set
forth in the Complaint and will continue to vigorously defend against the remaining claim. F- 3429 On June 7, 2023, Weird
Science LLC (“ Weird Science ), Wittekind, the William Anderson Wittekind 2020 Annuity Trust, the William
Anderson Wittekind 2021 Annuity Trust, the Dybul 2020 Angel Annuity Trust, and the Ty Mabry 2021 Annuity Trust
(collectively, the “ Trusts ) (collectively, “ Plaintiffs ”) filed a Verified Complaint against the Company in the Court of
Chancery of Delaware. Plaintiffs allege that the Company breached the February 16, 2018 Investor Rights Agreement
between the Company, Weird Science, and RS Group ApS (the “ Investor Rights Agreement ). According to the
Verified Complaint, the Investor Rights Agreement required the Company to (i) notify all “ Holders ” of “ Registrable
Securities ” at least 30 days prior to filing a registration statement and (ii) afford such Holders an opportunity to have
their Registrable Securities included in such registration statement. Plaintiffs allege that the Company breached these
registration rights by failing to provide the required notice in connection with S- 3 registration statements filed by the
Company on July 13, 2020 and February 11, 2022. Plaintiffs seek compensatory damages, pre- and post- judgment
interest, costs, and attorneys’ fees. Enochian denies Plaintiffs’ allegations and intends to vigorously defend against the
claim. On August 24, 2023, counsel on behalf of Weird Science, Wittekind, individually, and Wittekind, as trustee of the
Trusts served a demand to inspect the Company’ s books and records (the “ Demand ) pursuant to Delaware General
Corporation Law, § 220 (“ Section 220 ”). The Demand seeks the Company’ s books and records in connection with a
various issues identified in the Demand. The Company takes its obligations under Section 220 seriously and, to the
extent that the requests are proper under Section 220, intends to comply with those obligations. NOTE 10 — RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS On June 26, 2023, RS Bio ApS, a Danish entity, participated in the Private Placement and
purchased 1, 886, 794 of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 943, 397 shares of Common Stock resulting in
proceeds to the Company of $ 1, 000, 000. Mr. Rene Sindlev, the Chairman of the Company’ s Board of Directors, holds
the sole voting and disposition power of the shares owned by RS Bio ApS. The Board of Directors (excluding Mr.
Sindlev) approved the participation of certain officers and directors of the Company in the Private Placement on
identical terms as the other investors of the Private Placement (see Note 8). On March 17, 2023, RS Bio ApS, a Danish
entity, participated in the Private Placement and purchased 877, 193 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase
438, 597 shares of Common Stock resulting in proceeds to the Company of $ 1, 000, 000. Mr. Rene Sindlev, the Chairman
of the Company’ s Board of Directors, holds the sole voting and disposition power of the shares owned by RS Bio ApS.
The Board of Directors (excluding Mr. Sindlev) approved the participation of certain officers and directors of the
Company in the Private Placement on identical terms as the other investors of the Private Placement (see Note 8). The
Company paid G- Tech zero 0 and $ 4, 031, 500 and-$435804-0800-, which included payments for consulting agreements
related to HIV, and contractual costs related to the HBV License, the Development License and the ALC License (see Note 9),
and security expenses, for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 ard-2624-, respectively. The Company leased office space
[iom a landlord affiliated with G- Tech from May 15, 2022 to August 31, 2022, on a month- to- month basis for a total of $ 43,
), of which $ 4825 , #56-000 relates to the year ended June 30, 2023 eurrentpertod—The-amounthas-beenreeorded-in
aeef&ed-e*peﬂses— The Company paid the amount in full in August 2022. F- 30 NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS August
2023 Private Placement On August 1, 2023, the Company closed a private placement of 280, 505 of the Company’ s units.
Each such Unit consists of (i) one share of the Company’ s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $ 0. 0001 par value per
share and (ii) one Common Stock purchase warrant to purchase five shares of the Company’ s Common Stock, $ 0. 0001
par value per share at a price per Unit equal to $ 7. 13 for aggregate proceeds to the Company of $ 2, 000, 000 in cash. In
addition, the Company issued 280, S0S Units in connection with the conversion of $ 2, 000, 000 of the Promissory Note, as
further described below under the heading “ Amendment and Conversion of Previously Issued Promissory Note ”. In
connection with the Private Placement, the Company sold an aggregate of 561, 010 shares of Preferred Stock, which are
initially convertible into an aggregate of 5, 610, 100 shares of Common Stock. In connection with the Private Placement,
the Company sold Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2, 805, 050 shares of Common Stock, which represents 50 %
warrant coverage. The Warrants are exercisable for five years from the date of issuance and have an exercise price of $
0. 65 per share, payable in cash. On July +5-31 , 2022-2023 , eertainrofour-warrant-the Company and the helders-— holder of



the Previously Issued Promissory Note agreed to amend the Promissory Note (the Fourth Amendment), to provide the
holder with limited conversion rights in connection with the Private Placement. Per the terms of the Fourth Amendment,
the Holder could elect to convert $ 2, 000, 000 of the outstanding principal balance of the Promissory Note into the Units
being offered in the Private Placement at the price per Unit being paid by the investors in the Private Placement. As
mentioned above, on August 1, 2023, the holder of the Promissory Note notified the Company of their election to
exereised— exercise the Conversion Right. Therefore, $ 2, 000, 000 of the outstanding principal balance of the note was
converted into 280, 505 Units, comprised of an aggregate of (i) 280, S05 shares of Preferred Stock and (ii) warrants
Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1, 250-402 , 666-525 shares of Common Stock . A principal balance for-totalproeeeds
to-the-Company-of § 3 625, 000, 000 remained outstanding under with-eerrespondingearn—ount-distribution-in-the same

&fneuﬂt—Promlssory Note after the foregomg conversnon The Unlts 1ssued in connection with the conversion were 1ssued

ot ble rotes{seeNote-6- )n Beeeﬁaber—}@-September 28 %922—2023 th Company entered
into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “ Purchase Agreement ) with GEDi Cube, a private company formed under the
laws of England and Wales (“ GEDi Cube ). Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Purchase
Agreement, the Company will acquire 100 % of the equity interests of GEDi Cube from its equity holders (the “ Sellers
”) and GEDi Cube will become a wholly- owned subsidiary of the Company (the “ Transaction ). On September 28,
2023, the board of directors of the Company, and the board of managers of GEDi Cube unanimously approved the
Purchase Agreement. At the effective time of the Transaction (the “ Effective Time ), each ordinary share of GEDi Cube
(each, a “ GEDi Cube Share ) issued and outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time will be exchanged
for (i) shares of our Common Stock (the “ Renovaro Shares ) such that the total number of Renovaro Shares issued to
the holders of GEDi Cube Shares shall equal S0 % of the total number of Renovaro Shares outstanding as of the
Effective Time, subject to certain adjustments (the “ Closing Consideration ) and (ii) earn- out Renovaro Shares to be
issued pro rata to the Sellers upon the exercise or conversion of any of our derivative seeurity-securities (subject to
certain exceptions) which are outstanding at the Effective Time (the “ Earnout Shares ). Each of the Company and
GEDi Cube has agreed, subject to certain exceptions with respect to unsolicited proposals, not to directly or indirectly
solicit competing acquisition proposals or to enter into discussions concerning, or provide confidential information in
connection with, any unsolicited alternative acquisition proposals. The completion of the Transaction is subject to the
satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions, including: (i) adoption of the Purchase Agreement by holders of
all of the outstanding GEDi Cube Shares, (ii) approval of the issuance of Renovaro Shares in connection with the
Transaction by a majority of the votes cast at the shareholder meeting of our shareholders, (iii) absence of any court
order or regulatory injunction prohibiting completion of the Transaction, (iv) subject to specified materiality standards,
the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the other party, (v) the authorization for listing of Renovaro
Shares to be issued in the Transaction on the Nasdaq, (vi) compliance by the other party in all material respects with its
covenants, and (vii) the entry by the parties into a registration rights agreement , to become effective as of the Effective
Time, pursuant to which Renovaro will provide registration rights to the Sellers with the-Hetderrespect to ( a seeNete-6—)
the Renovaro Shares issued to the Sellers as Closing Consideration at the Effective Time and (b) any Earnout Shares
that they receive after the Closing. We and GEDi Cube have each made customary representations and warranties in the
Purchase Agreement. The Purchase Agreement also contains customary covenants and agreements, including covenants
and agreements relating to (i) the conduct of each of our and GEDi Cube’ s business between the date of the signing of
the Purchase Agreement and the closing date of the Transaction and (ii) the efforts of the parties to cause the
Transaction to be completed. The Purchase Agreement contains certain termination rights for both the Company and
GEDi Cube. Stock Issuances On July 28, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement to issue 500, 000 shares of
Common Stock for consulting services valued at $ 285, 000. On August 22, 2023, the Company entered into agreements
to issue an aggregate of 1, 000, 000 shares of Common Stock for consulting services valued at $ 2, 150, 000. On
September 28, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement to issue 500, 000 shares of Common Stock for consulting
services valued at $ 2, 035, 000. F- 32 [tem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure Not applicable. [tem 9A. Controls and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Our Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer (the “ Certifying Officers ) are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures for the Company. The Certifying Officers have designed such disclosure controls and
procedures to ensure that material information is made known to the Certifying Officers, particularly during the period in which
this Report was prepared. The Certifying Officers conducted a review of the Company’ s “ disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in the Exchange Act, Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15- d- 15 (e)) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report
(the ““ Evaluation Date ). Based upon that evaluation, the Certifying Officers concluded that, as of June 30, 2622-2023 , our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective in ensuring that the information we were required to disclose in reports
that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms. Management Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the
Company. Management used the * Internal Control over Financial Reporting Integrated Framework  issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations (“ COSO ) to conduct a review of the Company’ s internal controls over financial reporting. As of
June 30, 2622-2023 , Management concluded that internal controls over financial reporting was-were not effective, based on



COSO’ s framework. The deficiency is attributed to the Company not having adequate resources to address complex accounting
matters. This control deficiency will be monitored, and attention will be given to this matter as we-the Company grew-grows .
This Annual Report does not include an attestation report from the Company’ s registered public accounting firm regarding
internal controls over financial reporting. Management’ s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’ s registered
public accounting firm pursuant to the rules of the SEC that permit the Company to provide only management’ s report in this
Annual Report. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There were no changes in our internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Item 9B. Other Information Not Applicable. PART III Item 10.
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Reference 2. 1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2023, by and among Renovaro Biosciences Inc.,
GEDi Cube Intl Ltd., Yalla Yalla Ltd., in its capacity as Sellers’ Representative, and the Sellers party thereto
Incorporated by reference to exhibit 2. 1 to the Company’ s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on September 29, 2023 3. | *
Certificate of Incorporation , as amended 3. 2 Bylaws [ncorporated herein by reference to Exhibtt-exhibit 3—to the Company’
s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed with the SEC on May 45-16 , 2648-2019 . 3-4 . 2B¥ylaws-1 Promissory Note dated
March 30, 2020 issued to Paseco ApS Incorporated herein by reference to exhibitExhibit SEC-enFebruary272623-2022 4 4
-3-Amendment No.3 to Promissory Note,effective December 30,2022 Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’ s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on February 23,2023 .4. 4-5 Form of Amendment- Amended Ne-4-te-and Restated
Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Note, amended effective JalyDecember 3 1, 2623-2022 Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’ s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on August7February 23 ,2023 . 4. 5-6 Description
of Securities Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’ s Form 10- K filed with the SEC on September
30,2020.4-10 . 6-1 Form of Warrantineerperated-License Agreement to the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q filed
with the SEC on May+6-February 10 , 2649-2020 . 4-10 . +Form-3 Statement of Warrant Work and License Agreement by
and among G- Tech Bio, LLC, the Company and G Health Research Foundation Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10. 2-1 to the Company” s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on May+February 3 , 26+7-2020. 10 . 4 —2Premissery-Note
Purchase Agreement Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 2-1 to the Company’ s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on
March 31, 2020. 4-10 . 3-*AmendmentNe-5 General Office Lease by and between the Registrant and Century City
Medical Plaza Land Co . 2-te-PremisseryNete-, Inc. dated May+7June 19 , 2018 2022 4. 4 Amendment No....... 10. 1 Form
of License Agreement Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K, filed
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&ﬁ%ed—wﬁh—ﬂ%e—SE@eﬂ—Febfuaiy%—z%G—H—%fe—Pt&ehase»—— Puche Agreementineorporated-herein-by-referenee-to
Exhibit10—1to-the-Company—sForm-&-—Kfiled-with-the- SECon-Mareh-31-, 2020-10-—"5Tease-Agreementby-and-between-the
Geﬁap&ny—aﬁd—P-}aza—Medie&l-efﬁee—Btﬁ%d-ﬁ&g—I:I:Gddted December 28 Nevember—B%@lq—}neefpefﬁed—kwfetﬂ—b;Ffefefeﬂee—te
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and between the Company and Dr. Mark Dybul Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit to 10. 1 the Company’ s Current
Report on Form 8- K / A, filed with the SEC on August 16, 2021. 10. +44-8 Amendment to Employment Agreement between
Mark Dybul, M. D. and the Company-E-neeh-n&n—Bte—Seteﬂees—Iﬁe— dated December 12, 2022 Incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit to 10. 1 the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K, filed with the SEC on December 16, 2022. 10. +5-9 Security
Agreement, effective December 30, 2022, by and between the Company and Paseco ApS Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on February 23, 2023. 2+-10. 10 Purchase Agreement, dated
June 20, 2023, by and between the Company and Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10 . | to *Eistefsubsidiartes-ofthe Company > s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on June 27, 2023 10. 11 Registration
Rights Agreement, dated June 20, 2023, by and between the Company and Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC
Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s Form 8- K filed with the SEC on June 27, 2023 23. |
* Consent of Sadler, Gibb & Associates 31. 1 * Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) or Rule
15d- 14 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 31. 2 * Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a)
or Rule 15d- 14 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 32. 1 * * Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to
Rule 13a- 14 (b) or Rule 15d- 14 (b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U. S. C. Section +356-32. 2 * * Certification
of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (b) or Rule 15d- 14 (b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U. S.
C. Section +356-101. INS XBRL Instance Document * 101. SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema * 101. CAL XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase * 101. DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase * 101. LAB XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase * 101. PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase * Cover Page Interactive
Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) * * Provided herewith. * * Furnished herewith.
SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. Date: Febraary27October 2 ,
2023 ENOEHHAN-RENOVARO BIOSCIENCES INC. By: /s / Mark Dybul Mark Dybul Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) By: / s/ Luisa Puche Luisa Puche Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Signature Title Date / s / Dr. Mark Dybul Chief
Executive Officer Febraary27October 2 , 2023 Dr. Mark Dybul (Principal Executive Officer) /s / Luisa Puche Chief Financial
Officer February27October 2 , 2023 Luisa Puche (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) / s / René Sindlev Director and
Chairman of the Board Febraary27October 2 , 2023 René Sindlev /s / Henrik Grenfeldt- Serensen Director Febraary2+
October 2 , 2023 Henrik Gronfeldt- Serensen /s / Gregg Alton Director Febraary27-October 2 , 2023 Gregg Alton /s / Jayne
McNicol Director Febraary27October 2 , 2023 Ms. Jayne McNicol /s / James Sapirstein Director February27October 2 ,
2()23 Jdmes Sapnstem /s/C arol BIosLart Dlrector Febfu&l”y%—?’—October 2, 2073 C arol BIosLart EXHIBIT 4-3
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-P-femrsseiﬂy—Ne’fe—Exhlblt 71 1 LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES The follo“mﬂ is a llst of subsldlalles of the Company as of June 3()
2622-2023 : Subsidiary Legal Name State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization Eneehian-Renovaro
Biopharma, Inc. Delaware EneehtanrRenovaro Biosciences Denmark ApS Denmark Eneehtan-Renovaro Tecnologies, Inc.
NevadaExhibit 23. 1 Registered-with-the Publie-Company-CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM EnoehianrTo the Board of Directors Renovaro Biosciences, Inc. Los Angeles, CA We hereby consent
to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements— Statement on Form S-3-8 (No. 333- 239837261628 ) of
EnoehtanBiosetenees; Tne—of our report dated October X3%-1 , 2622-2023 relating-, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of Renovaro Biosciences, Inc., as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 , which appears in this
Annual Report on Form 10- K of the Company . Satttake-City-/ s / Sadler, Gibb & Associates, LLC Draper . UT October
1, 2023 Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, Mark Dybul, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of
Enechian-Renovaro Biosciences Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial



statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other
certifying officer (s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15- d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared; b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal
control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles; ¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over
financial reporting; and 5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design
or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. Date:
February27-October 2 , 2023 By: / s / Mark Dybul Mark Dybul Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Exhibit
31. 2 CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, Luisa Puche, certify that: Date: Febraary27October 2 , 2023 /s / Luisa Puche Luisa Puche Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C.
SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection
with the Annual Report of Erneehtan-Renovaro Biosciences Inc. (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the year ending June 30,
2622-2023 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ Report ), the undersigned, Mark Dybul, as Chief
Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) of the Company, hereby certifies as of the date hereof, solely for purposes of
Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States Code, that to the best of my knowledge: (1) The Report fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (2) The information
contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Exhibit 32. 2 In connection with the Annual Report of Eneehtan-Renovaro Biosciences Inc. (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K
for the year ending June 30, 2622-2023 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ Report ), the undersigned,
Luisa Puche, as Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) of the Company, hereby certifies as of the date hereof,
solely for purposes of Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States Code, that to the best of my knowledge: (1) The
Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. Date: Febraary27QOctober 2 , 2023 /s / Luisa Puche Luisa Puche Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



